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FORM 5 
 

QUARTERLY LISTING STATEMENT  

Name of Listed Issuer:  International Cannabrands Inc. (the “Issuer”). 

Trading Symbol: JUJU  

This Quarterly Listing Statement must be posted on or before the day on which the Issuer’s 
unaudited interim financial statements are to be filed under the Securities Act, or, if  no interim 
statements are required to be filed for the quarter, within 60 days of the end of the Issuer’s first, 
second and third fiscal quarters. This statement is not intended to replace the Issuer’s obligation 
to separately report material information forthwith upon the information becoming known to 
management or to post the forms required by the Exchange Policies.  If material information 
became known and was reported during the preceding quarter to which this statement relates, 
management is encouraged to also make reference in this statement to the material information, 
the news release date and the posting date on the Exchange website. 

General Instructions 

(a) Prepare this Quarterly Listing Statement using the format set out below.  The sequence 
of questions must not be altered nor should questions be omitted or left unanswered.  
The answers to the following items must be in narrative form.  When the answer to any 
item is negative or not applicable to the Issuer, state it in a sentence.  The title to each 
item must precede the answer. 

(b) The term “Issuer” includes the Listed Issuer and any of its subsidiaries. 

(c) Terms used and not defined in this form are defined or interpreted in Policy 1 – 
Interpretation and General Provisions. 

 
There are three schedules which must be attached to this report as follows: 
 
SCHEDULE A:  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Financial statements are required as follows: (Attached) 
 
For the first, second and third financial quarters interim financial statements prepared in 
accordance with the requirements under Ontario securities law must be attached. 
 
If the Issuer is exempt from filing certain interim financial statements, give the date of the 
exempting order. 
 
SCHEDULE B:  SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
The supplementary information set out below must be provided when not included in 
Schedule A. 



 
 

 
FORM 5 – QUARTERLY LISTING STATEMENT  

January 2015 
Page 2 

 

 

 
 
1. Related party transactions 
 

Provide disclosure of all transactions with a Related Person, including those previously 
disclosed on Form 10. Include in the disclosure the following information about the 
transactions with Related Persons:  
 
(a) A description of the relationship between the transacting parties.  Be as precise 

as possible in this description of the relationship.  Terms such as affiliate, 
associate or related company without further clarifying details are not sufficient. 

(b) A description of the transaction(s), including those for which no amount has been 
recorded. 

(c) The recorded amount of the transactions classified by financial statement 
category. 

(d) The amounts due to or from Related Persons and the terms and conditions 
relating thereto. 

(e) Contractual obligations with Related Persons, separate from other contractual 
obligations. 

(f) Contingencies involving Related Persons, separate from other contingencies. 
 

Please refer to Schedule A – Financial Statements – Note 16 “Related Party 
Transactions and Certain Relationships”. 
 

2. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period. 
 

Provide the following information for the period beginning on the date of the last Listing 
Statement (Form 2A): 
 
(a) summary of securities issued during the period (from January 1, 2019, to March 

31, 2019), 
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Date of 

Issue 

 

Type of 

Security 

(common 

shares, 

convertible 

debentures, 

etc.) 

Type of 

Issue 

(private 

placement, 

public 

offering, 

exercise of 

warrants, 

etc.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Number 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Price 

(Cdn$)

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total 

Proceeds 

(Cdn$) 

 

 

 

 

 

Type of 

Consider

-ation 

(cash, 

property, 

etc.) 

 

Describe 

relationship 

of Person 

with Issuer 

(indicate if 

Related 

Person) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commiss

-ion Paid 

Jan 3, 

2019 

Common 

Shares 

Acquisition 25,225,161 $0.155 n/a Property n/a n/a 

Jan 8, 

2019 

Common 

Shares 

Exercise of 

Options 

50,000 $0.25 n/a Services Consultant n/a 

Jan 10, 

2019 

Common 

Shares 

Private 

Placement 

250,000 $0.10 n/a Services Consultant n/a 

Jan 24, 

2019 

Units (1 
common share 
1 warrant) 

Private 
Placement 

31,280,000 $0.10 $3,128,000 Cash n/a Yes 

Jan 24, 

2019 

Agent’s 
Warrants 

Private 
Placement 

1,564,000 $0.15 n/a Services n/a n/a 

Jan 24, 

2019 

Broker 
Warrants 

Private 
Placement 

2,189,600 $0.10 n/a Services Sub-Agents n/a 

Jan 30, 

2019 

Common 
Shares 

Private 

Placement 

750,000 n/a n/a Services Consultant n/a 

Jan 30, 

2019 

Common 
Shares 

Exercise of 

Warrants 

50,000 $0.05 $2,500 Cash n/a n/a 

Jan 30, 

2019 

Finder 
Warrants 

Private 

Placement 

966,000 $0.10 n/a Services Consultants n/a 

Mar 4, 

2019 

Common 
Shares 

Exercise of 

Options 

375,000 $0.075 n/a Services CFO n/a 

Mar 4, 

2019 

Common 
Shares 

Private 

Placement 

5,000,000 $0.08 n/a Services Consultants No 

         

 
(b) summary of options granted during the period, 
 

 

 

Date 

 

 

Number 

 

Name of Optionee 

if Related Person 

and relationship 

 

Generic description of 

other Optionees 

 

 

Exercise Price 

 

 

Expiry Date 

 

Market Price 

on date of 

Grant 
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3. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.  
 

Provide the following information in tabular format as at the end of the reporting period: 
 
(a) description of authorized share capital including number of shares for each class, 

dividend rates on preferred shares and whether or not cumulative, redemption 
and conversion provisions, 

 
The authorized share capital of the Company consists of unlimited 
common shares without par value and 1,837,000 preferred shares, with 
such rights privileges, restrictions and conditions as may be fixed by the 
board of directors of the Company.  
 
Common Shares:  The holders of Common Shares are entitled to receive 
notice of and to attend and vote at all meetings of the shareholders of the 
Company and each Common Share shall confer the right to one vote in 
person or by proxy at all meetings of the shareholders of the Company. 
The holders of Common Shares, subject to the prior rights, if any, of any 
other class of shares of the Company, are entitled to receive such 
dividends in any financial year as the Board of the Company may by 
resolution determine. In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-
up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary, the holders of 
Common Shares are entitled to receive, subject to the prior rights, if any, of 
the holders of any other class of shares of the Company, the remaining 
property and assets of the Company.  
 
Preferred Shares:  The holders of the Preferred Shares are entitled to 
receive notice of and to attend and vote at all meetings of the shareholders 
of Common Shares and each Preferred shareholder shall have the right to 
one vote for each Common Share into which such Preferred Share could 
then be converted (one hundred (100) Common Shares) in person or by 
proxy at all meetings of the shareholders of the Company. The holders of 
Preferred Shares are entitled to receive such dividends as may be granted 
to holders of Common Shares in any financial year as the Board of the 
Company may by resolution determine, on an as-converted basis. In the 
event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, whether 
voluntary or involuntary, the holders of Preferred Shares are entitled to 
receive the remaining property and assets of the Company together with 
the holders of Common Shares, on an as-converted basis.  The Preferred 
Shares each have a restricted right to convert into one hundred (100) 
Common Shares. The ability to convert Preferred Shares is subject to a 
restriction that the aggregate number of Common Shares and Preferred 
Shares held of record, directly or indirectly, by residents of the United 
States (as determined in accordance with Rules 3b-4 and 12g3-2(a) under 
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the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, may not exceed forty 
percent (40%) of the aggregate number of Common Shares and Preferred 
Shares issued and outstanding after giving effect to such conversions. In 
addition, Preferred Shares will be automatically converted into Common 
Shares in certain circumstances, including upon the registration of the 
Common Shares under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended. The aforementioned is only a summary of the terms of the 
Preferred Shares.  Readers are encouraged to refer to Schedule “C” to the 
Share Exchange Agreement, a copy of which has been filed on SEDAR at 
www.sedar.com.  
 

(b) number and recorded value for shares issued and outstanding, 
 
As of the date of this Quarterly Listing Statement, 270,276,465 Common 
Shares and 0 Preferred Shares were issued and outstanding as fully paid 
and non-assessable shares. 
 

(c) description of options, warrants and convertible securities outstanding, including 
number or amount, exercise or conversion price and expiry date, and any 
recorded value, and 
 
As of the date of this Quarterly Listing Statement there were 25,605,570 
options to purchase common shares at prices ranging from Cdn$0.07 to 
$0.46, Performance Warrants to purchase 81,649,222 common shares at a 
price of Cdn$0.07 and the following warrants to purchase common shares: 
 
Number Exercise Price  Expiry Date 

2,232,142 $0.094 August 22, 2020(1)

2,631,578 $0.1187 August 28, 2020(1) 
4,007,400 $0.15 September 26, 2020(1)

1,887,118 $0.30 September 26, 2019 
7,896,000 $0.15 December 7, 2021 
5,775,000 $0.15  December 14, 2021 
4,200,000 $0.15 December 21, 2021 
32,844,000 $0.15 January 24, 2022 
240,000 $0.05 July 30, 2020 
670,800 $0.05 August 30, 2020 
526,400 $0.10 December 7, 2021 
385,000 $0.10 December 14, 2021 
280,000 $0.10 December 21, 2021 
2,189,600 $0.10 January 24, 2022 
966,000 $0.10 January 30, 2022 
66,731,038   
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(1) subject to the ability for the Issuer to accelerate the expiry date under certain conditions.  

 
(d) number of shares in each class of shares subject to escrow or pooling 

agreements or any other restriction on transfer. 
 
See the table below for a list of the shares subject to escrow as at March 
31, 2019: 
 

Name and Municipality of 
Residence of Securityholder 

Designation of 
Class 

No. of Common 
Shares held in 

escrow(1) 
Percentage of Class 

(undiluted)(2) 
Jeffrey Britz 
New York, NY 

Common 10,255,355 3.7% 

Travis Belcher 
Marina Del Ray, CA 

Common 3,184,767 1.1% 

Lisa Marra Crrok 
Pikesville, MD 

Common 1,115,948 0.4% 

Andrew Garbus 
Bayside, NY 

Common 623,975 0.2% 

Matthew Garbus 
Bayside, NY 

Common 623,975 0.24% 

Gloria Belcher 
Urbanna, VA 

Common 1,247,949 0.45% 

Rita Hudson 
Douglasville, GA 

Common 1,247,949 0.45% 

Total  18,299,918 6.54% 

 
Following the restructuring of the Issuer’s share capital, the shares governed by 
the National Instrument escrow agreement that had not been released were 
cancelled. The current agreement is a private escrow agreement with 15% of the 
shares being releasable on September 24, 2019 and each six months thereafter.   
 

4. List the names of the directors and officers, with an indication of the position(s) 
held, as at the date this report is signed and filed. 
 

Name Positions 

Steve Gormley President & CEO, Director 

Neal Pomroy Chairman and a Director 

Travis Belcher President of Julian Marley JuJu Royal,  and a Director 

Mark Scott  CFO 

Antonio Ruggieri Director 

Scott Reeves Director and Secretary 

Bryce Berryessa Director 
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SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Provide Interim MD&A if required by applicable securities legislation. See Schedule C. 
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Certificate Of Compliance 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. The undersigned is a director and/or senior officer of the Issuer and has been 
duly authorized by a resolution of the board of directors of the Issuer to sign 
this Quarterly Listing Statement. 

2. As of the date hereof there is no material information concerning the Issuer 
which has not been publicly disclosed. 

3. The undersigned hereby certifies to the Exchange that the Issuer is in 
compliance with the requirements of applicable securities legislation (as such 
term is defined in National Instrument 14-101) and all Exchange 
Requirements (as defined in CNSX Policy 1). 

4. All of the information in this Form 5 Quarterly Listing Statement is true. 

Dated  May 30, 2019. 

 Scott Reeves     
Name of Director or Senior Officer 
 

 
   
Signature 

 Director and Secretary  
Official Capacity 

 
Issuer Details 
Name of Issuer 
INTERNATIONAL CANNABRANDS INC. 
 

For  Quarter End 
March 31, 201 (3 
mos) 

Date of Report 
YY/MM/D 
19/05/30 

Issuer Address 
#106, 1045 Lincoln Street 
 

City/Province/Postal Code 
Denver, Colorado  80203 
 

Issuer Fax No. 
(     ) 

Issuer Telephone No. 
(303) 474-4383 or 
(888) 506-7160 x6 

Contact Name 
Mark Scott 
 

Contact Position 
CFO 

Contact Telephone No. 
(303) 474-4383 

Contact Email Address 
mark@jujuroyal.net 
 

Web Site Address 
jujuroyal.net 
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SCHEDULE A 
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements  
for the Three Months ended March 31, 2019 

(Attached) 
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INTERNATIONAL CANNABRANDS INC.  
 
For the three months ended 
March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018  
 
(Unaudited) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

2 
 

INTERNATIONAL CANNABRANDS INC.  
Financial Statements for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 (Unaudited- 
Expressed in United States Dollars) 
 
Table of Contents 
 
Financial Statements 

Statements of Financial Position ……………………………………………………………………... 3 

Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit……………………………………………………… 4 

Statements of Comprehensive Loss……………………………………………………………………5 

Statements of Cash Flows…………………………………………………………………………….. 6 

Notes to Financial Statements……………………………………………………………………………. 7 
 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The management of International Cannabrands Inc. is responsible for the preparation of the 
accompanying financial statements and the preparation of information in the Annual Listing Statement. 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards, and are considered by management to present fairly the financial position and operating results 
of the Company. 
 
Under National Instrument 51-102, Continuous Disclosure Obligations, if an auditor has not performed a 
review of the interim financial statements, they must be accompanied by a notice indicating that the 
financial statements have not been reviewed by an auditor. 
 
The Company's independent auditor has not performed a review of these condensed consolidated interim 
financial statements in accordance with standards established by the Chartered Professional Accountants 
of Canada for a review of interim financial statements by an entity's auditor. 
 
The Company maintains various systems of internal control to provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are properly authorized and recorded, that assets are safeguarded, and that financial reports 
are properly maintained to provide accurate reliable financial statements. 
 
The board of directors of International Cannabrands Inc., have approved the financial statements. 
 
Steve Gormley      Neal Pomroy 
President & CEO, Director    Executive Chairman, Director 
May 30, 2019     May 30, 2019 
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INTERNATIONAL CANNABRANDS INC.  

Statements of Financial Position 
(Expressed in United States Dollars) 
 
  

Maech 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
ASSETS (Unaudited) (Audited)

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) $ 1,499,687                $ 670,894                   
Trade and other receivables (Note 8) 750,710                   4,882                       
Inventories (Note 9) 1,652,601                235,398                   
Prepaid expenses and deposits (Note 10) 66,280                     91,168                     
Current portion of right of use asset (Note 6) 55,728                     -                           

Total current assets 4,025,006                1,002,342                

Non-current assets
Investment in Riotus SODO LLC (Note 11) 500,000                   500,000                   
Investment in La Vida Verde, Inc.(Note 11) -                           1,600,000                
Note receivable (Note 16) 33,310                     33,152                     
Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 164,400                   6,376                       
Intangible asset- Juju license (Note 11) 170,500                   173,250                   
Intangible asset- La Vida Verde, Inc.(Note 11) 7,992,083                -                           
Non-current portion of right of use asset (Note 6) 116,856                   -                           
Total non-current assets 8,977,149                2,312,778                

Total assets $ 13,002,155             $ 3,315,120                

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 14) $ 1,218,756                $ 314,823                   
Income taxes payable (Note 21) 37,677                     -                           
Current portion of note payable (Note 16) 2,338,596                460,000                   
Current portion of right of use liability (Note 6) 55,728                     -                           

Total current liabilities 3,650,757                774,823                   

Non-current liabilities
Note payable (Note 16) 280,779                   469,551                   
Non-current portion of right of use liability (Note 6) 116,856                   -                           

Total non-current liabilities 397,635                   469,551                   

Total liabilities 4,048,392                1,244,374                

Share capital (Note 18) 9,696,032                5,759,474                
Additonal paid in capital (Note 18) 4,369,872                3,307,567                
Deficit (10,563,615)            (6,996,295)              

Total stockholders' equity 3,502,289                2,070,746                

Non controlling interest in La Vida Verde, Inc. 5,451,474                -                           

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit) $ 13,002,155             $ 3,315,120                

As at

 
 
Approved on behalf of the Board: 
 
    “Steve Gormley”     Director, President & CEO     “Neal Pomroy”     Executive Chairman               
                                                                                                                                   and Director 
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INTERNATIONAL CANNABRANDS INC.  
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) 
(Expressed in United States Dollars) 
 

Total
Total No. of No. of Additional Stockholders'

Amount Shares $ Shares $ Paid in Capital Deficit Equity (Deficit)
Balance- December 31, 2016 9,940,000       $ 355,895          -                        $ -                  -                  $ -                  $ -                       $ (1,155,277)         $ (799,382)          

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2017 -                  -                  -                        -                  -                  -                  -                       (1,397,859)         (1,397,859)       
Issuance of units (Note 18) 1,786,693       1,569,120       -                        -                  -                  -                  -                       -                      1,569,120        
Cancellation of units (Note 18) (2,071,250)     (219,040)        -                        -                  -                  -                  -                       -                      (219,040)          
Effect of reverse merger (Note 18) (9,655,443)     (1,705,975)     39,234,295          -                  1,836,628       -                  1,705,975           -                      -                    
Shares issued for acquisition for finder's and other fees (Note 18) -                  -                  10,541,400          495,533          -                  -                  (495,533)             -                      -                    
Shares issued in a private placement (Note 18) -                  -                  1,114,614            107,422          -                  -                  -                       -                      107,422           
Shares issued from the conversion of preferred shares (Note 18) -                  -                  20,168,880          -                  (201,689)        -                  -                       -                      -                    
Shares issued for the exercise of stock options (Note 18) -                  -                  253,333               10,282            -                  -                  -                       -                      10,282              
Shares issued for services (Note 18) -                  -                  167,857               32,537            -                  -                  -                       -                      32,537              
Stock based compensation -                  -                  -                        -                  -                  -                  5,738                   -                      5,738                

Balance- December 31, 2017 -                       -                       71,480,379          645,774          1,634,939       -                  1,216,180           (2,553,136)         (691,182)          

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2018 -                  -                  -                        -                  -                  -                  -                       (4,443,159)         (4,443,159)       
Shares issued in a private placement (Note 18) -                  -                  71,160,804          4,196,319       -                  -                  -                       -                      4,196,319        
Shares issued from the conversion of preferred shares (Note 18) -                  -                  72,266,817          -                  (317,465)        -                  -                       -                      -                    
Shares issued for the exercise of stock options (Note 18) -                  -                  120,001               11,907            -                  -                  -                       -                      11,907              
Shares issued for services (Note 18) -                  -                  5,156,000            -                  -                  -                  498,995              -                      498,995           
Stock based compensation -                  -                  -                        -                  -                  -                  1,716,142           -                      1,716,142        
Warrant exercises -                  -                  10,178,708          781,724          -                  -                  -                       -                      781,724           
Cancellation of shares -                  -                  (24,630,405)        123,750          (1,317,474)     -                  (123,750)             -                      -                    
Balance- December 31, 2018 -                       -                       205,732,304        $ 5,759,474       -                  $ -                  3,307,567           $ (6,996,295)         $ 2,070,746        

Net loss for the three months ended March 31, 2019 -                  -                  -                        -                  -                  -                  -                       (3,730,803)         (3,730,803)       
Shares issued in a private placement (Note 18) -                  -                  31,280,000          2,344,327       -                  -                  -                       -                      2,344,327        
Shares issued for the exercise of stock options (Note 18) -                  -                  425,000               -                  -                  -                  -                       -                      -                    
Shares issued for services (Note 18) -                  -                  7,564,000            -                  -                  -                  568,255              -                      568,255           
Stock based compensation -                  -                  -                        -                  -                  -                  494,050              -                      494,050           
Issuance of shares for acquisition of La Vida Verde, Inc. -                  -                  25,225,161          1,590,336       -                  -                  -                       163,483              1,753,819        
Warrant exercises -                  -                  50,000                  1,895              -                  -                  -                       -                      1,895                
Balance- March 31, 2019 -                       -                       270,276,465        $ 9,696,032       -                  $ -                  4,369,872           $ (10,563,615)       $ 3,502,289        

Member Contributions

No. of Units

Common Stock Preferred Stock
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INTERNATIONAL CANNABRANDS INC.  

Statements of Comprehensive Loss 
(Expressed in United States Dollars) 
  

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

REVENUE $ 1,223,277                    $ 45,117                          
COST OF SALES 1,860,837                    30,984                          
GROSS MARGIN (637,560)                      14,133                          
OPERATING EXPENSES: 1,180,050                    334,629                       

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (1,817,610)                   (320,496)                      

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest expense (45,432)                        (4,241)                          
Amortization expense (2,021,982)                   (196,065)                      
Total other income (expense) (2,067,414)                   (200,306)                      

NET (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES (3,885,024)                   (520,802)                      

INCOME TAXES 
Current income tax expense (Note 19) -                                    -                                    

NET LOSS (3,885,024)                   (520,802)                      

Noncontrolling interest in La Vida Verde, Inc. 163,483                       -                                    
Loss on foreign translation (9,262)                          -                                    

NET COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR $ (3,730,803)                   $ (520,802)                      

LOSS PER UNIT (Note 20)
Basic and diluted $ (0.02)                             $ (0.01)                             

WEIGHTED AVRAGE UNITS ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING (Note 2)
Basic and diluted 257,341,328                80,400,455                  

Three Months Ended, 
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INTERNATIONAL CANNABRANDS INC.  

Statements of Cash Flows 
(Expressed in United States Dollars) 

  
  

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (3,567,320)                       $ (520,802)                          
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by   

(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 949,852                           2,819                               
Stock based compensation -                                       87,877                             
Issuance of shares for service 194,867                           105,369                           

Accrued interest on notes payable -                                       4,242                               
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables (459,041)                          1,872                               

Increase  in inventories (83,470)                            (51,495)                            
Increase in prepaid expenses and deposits (24,888)                            -                                       
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 155,023                           (85,665)                            
Decrease in deferred revenue -                                       (1,042)                              
Cash provided by non-controlling interest 163,483                           -                                       

Net cash used in operating activities (2,671,494)                   (456,825)                      

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of intangible assets, La Vida Verde, Inc. (498,410)                          -                                       
Cash acquired in acquisition of La Vida Verde, Inc. 925,704                           -                                       p p y q p
Net cash  provided by investing activities 427,294                       -                                   

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments to  related parties (138,772)                        -                                      
Equity issuances 3,211,765                        546,437                           
Warrant exercises -                                       113,848                           

Net cash provided by financing activities 3,072,993                    660,285                       

Net increase  in cash and cash equivalents 828,793                           203,460                           

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of period, January 1 670,894                           107,899                           
End of period,  March 31 $ 1,499,687                        $ 311,359                           

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest expense $ -                                       $ -                                       
Taxes $ 335,823                           -                                       

Supplemental schedule of non-cash financing activities
Issuance of shares for acquisition of La Vida Verde, Inc. $ 1,590,336                        $ -                                       

INTERNATIONAL CANNABRANDS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended, 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INTERNATIONAL CANNABRANDS INC.  
 

For the three months ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018  
 
(expressed in United States Dollars) 
 
 

1.  NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
International Cannabrands Inc. (the “Company”) (formerly GEA Technologies Ltd. (“GEA”), by 
way of a name change) was incorporated under the provisions of the Business Corporations Act 
in the Province of Alberta on May 3, 2011. The common shares of the Company are listed and 
posted for trading on the Canadian Securities Exchange and currently trade under the symbol 
JUJU. The Company's head office is located at Suite #106, 1045 Lincoln Street, Denver, 
Colorado 80203. 
 
On September 21, 2017, GEA completed a reverse acquisition to acquire DropLeaf LLC, a 
Nevada limited liability company (the "Transaction"). As part of the Transaction, DropLeaf 
underwent a merger and conversion to become International Cannabrands Ltd. ("International 
Cannabrands").  While the Company was initially formed for the purpose of licensing the Julian 
Marley JuJu Royal™ cannabis brand to producers and processors to develop branded strains of 
cannabis, infused and edible cannabis consumables, as well as ancillary products such as clothing, 
paraphernalia, posters in the US and internationally, in mid-2018, the Company adopted a 
strategy of aggregating emerging brands, identifying and acquiring regional distribution 
companies and select, highly profitable value chain investments. 
  
Although the Transaction resulted in International Cannabrands becoming a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of the Company, the Transaction constituted a reverse acquisition of the Company by 
International Cannabrands. For accounting purposes, International Cannabrands is considered the 
acquirer and the Company the acquiree. Accordingly, the financial statements are a continuation 
of the financial statements of International Cannabrands and references to the “Company” will 
mean the consolidated entity subsequent to the date of the Transaction and to DropLeaf LLC 
prior to that date. The financial statements include the financial position and results of 
International Cannabrands and the Company. 
  
GEA acquired its interest of the issued and outstanding shares of DropLeaf as detailed above. The 
fair value of net identifiable assets of DropLeaf as at September 26, 2017, prior to the transaction 
was: 
 

Assets and Liabilities of DropLeaf           Amount (In CN $) 

Current assets               $434,965  
Non-current assets                 226,222  
Liabilities             (1,244,344) 

Equity              $(583,157) 

 
Control of the Company passed to the former shareholders of DropLeaf upon the closing of the     
transaction.  This type of share exchange is referred to as a “reverse merger.” A reverse merger 
transaction involving a non-public enterprise and a non-operating public company is a capital 
transaction in substance, rather than a business combination.  That is, the transaction is equivalent 
to the issue of shares by the non-public operating enterprise for the net monetary assets of the 
non-operating public company, accompanied by a recapitalization of the non-public operating 
enterprise. 
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 The purchase price was allocated as follows: 
       

         Amount 

Cash        $16,817  
Net other assets and liabilities         (22,363) 
Fair value of shares exchanged        528,070  
Fair value of finder’s fee shares        (528,070) 

Loss on acquisition         $(5,546) 

 
The Company issued 16,623,788 common shares and 1,836,630 preferred shares to DropLeaf for 
the value of the $528,070. In connection with the Transaction, pursuant to a Finder’s Fee 
Agreement, the Company issued 10,541,400 GEA Common Shares (issuable at a deemed price of 
$0.05 per share) or $528,070 on Closing to a party at arm’s length to GEA and DropLeaf, as a 
finder’s fee. 
 
 Acquisition entries reverse the share capital of DropLeaf and the reserves and deficit of GEA as 
of September 21, 2017.  

On March 22, 2018, the Company incorporated Rasta Puppy LLC in the state of Nevada. This 
company is not currently operating. 

On September 19, 2018, the Company incorporated LVV Holding Company Ltd. in the state of 
Nevada in connection with its acquisition of La Vida Verde, Inc.  
 

2.  GOING CONCERN 
 
The financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis. The going concern basis 
assumes that the Company will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to 
realize its assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. 
 
The Company has attained a net loss of $3,730,803 for the three months ended March 31, 2019 
(December 31, 2018 - $4,443,159) and has an accumulated deficit of $10,563,615 as at March 31, 
2019 (December 31, 2018 - $6,996,295). The Company expects such losses to lessen moving 
forward into the foreseeable future as it continues to develop and commercialize its products. The 
Company has funded its current cash needs primarily through private placements of equity to 
investors. The Company anticipates addressing future financial requirements through the 
additional issuance of equity and/or debt from public capital markets. 
 
The Company's ability to continue as a going concern and to realize the carrying value of its 
assets and discharge its liabilities when due is dependent upon the Company's ability to obtain the 
ongoing support of its lenders, investors, obtain profitable operations, and raise additional capital. 
These consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to the carrying value and 
classification of assets and liabilities that would necessary should the Company not be able to 
continue as a going concern, and such adjustments could be material. 
 

3.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

The unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, 
except for certain financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. 
 
Statement of compliance 
 
Management of the Company prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company 
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during the period of January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018, and the Board of Directors approved 
them on April 29, 2019. 
 
The consolidated financial statements of the Company are drawn up in United States dollars. 
Amounts are stated in and recorded to the nearest thousands of United States dollars except where 
otherwise indicated. The consolidated financial statements are prepared at the year ended date of 
the Company's financial statements. The Company’s functional currency is US. 
 
In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial 
position, consolidated statement of cash flows, and consolidated statement of changes in equity, 
certain items are combined for the sake of clarity. These are explained within the notes. The 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is prepared using the cost-of-sales method. 
Assets and liabilities are classified by maturity. They are regarded as current if they mature within 
one year or within the normal business cycle of the Company. The normal business cycle is 
defined for this purpose as beginning with the procurement of the resources necessary for the 
production process and ending with the receipt of cash or cash equivalents as consideration for 
the sale of the goods produced in that process. Trade and other receivables and payable, claims 
for tax refunds, tax liabilities and inventories are always presented as current items; deferred tax 
assets and liabilities, if any, are presented as non-current items. Provisions, debt and other 
liabilities are shown between current and non-current. 
 

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

(a) Principles of Consolidation  
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned 
subsidiary. Inter-Company items and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

 
(b) Revenue Recognition 
 
The Company derives revenue from product sales in accordance with distribution agreements. 
The distribution agreement also gives the customer the right to use the trademark in conjunction 
with the use, marketing, selling and distribution of the branded products. 
 
Revenue for product sales is recognized when there is evidence of arrangement, the amount is 
fixed or determinable, products are shipped to the customer, and collection is reasonably assured 
and is recorded net of discounts or sales incentives. Amounts received prior to the shipment of 
products are recognized as deferred revenue in the year received and recorded as revenue when 
the products are shipped and the above criteria is met.  
 
Revenue for sub-licensing is recognized over the term of the agreement as it is earned. It is 
recognized over a straight-line basis and the unearned portion is classified as deferred revenue. 
  
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The Company assesses its revenue 
arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The 
Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all its revenue arrangements. 
 
The reserve for doubtful accounts was $55,000 and $5,000 at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 
2018, respectively. 
 
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Cash Flows 
 
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on 
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hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. For the statement 
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined above. 
The Company uses the indirect method of reporting cash flow from operating activities. 
 
(d)  Inventories 
 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct 
component costs as well as applicable normal manufacturing overhead. Net realizable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The reserve for obsolete inventories was 
$236,547 and $5,100 at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively. 
 
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and/or 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the 
property and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition 
criteria are met. When significant parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced in 
intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and 
depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized 
in the carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria 
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the 
decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the 
recognition criteria for a provision are met.  
 
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
 
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and 
equipment, and is recognized net within other income (expenses) in statement of comprehensive 
income. 
 
Depreciation is calculated based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant 
components of individual assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different 
from the remainder of that asset, then that component is depreciated separately. 
 
Depreciation is recognized in statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are 
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain 
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term in which case it is 
depreciated over the useful life. Depreciation is provided for using the following methods and 
annual rates: 
 
Machinery and equipment- 3 years and straight-line   
Furniture and fixtures- 3 years straight-line 
 
The Company assesses at each year end the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant 
and equipment and changes its estimates if required. 
 
(f) Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 
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recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Certain internally generated intangible assets are capitalized, as 
they meet the criterion under IAS 38. 
 
(g) Impairment of Non-financial assets 
 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset or a 
group of assets (CGU) may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment 
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less disposal costs and its value in use. Where 
the carrying amount of an asset (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (CGU) is 
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset 
or cash-generating unit. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, an appropriate valuation 
model is used. The Company has cash-generating units which impairment could be tested against. 
The Company had no goodwill or indefinite life intangible assets for the three motns ended 
March 31, 2019 and the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. 
 
Impairment losses, if any, of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the function and nature of the 
impaired asset. 
 
For non-financial assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any 
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the non-financial asset’s or 
cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed 
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the non-financial asset’s 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that 
the carrying amount of the non-financial asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the non-financial asset in prior periods. Such reversal is 
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 

            (h) Contributions 
 

Contributions were classified as equity.  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
units and unit-based payments are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 
 
(i) Taxes 
 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax expense is recognized in 
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other 
comprehensive income (loss). 
 
Current income tax 
 
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the respective and prior years are measured at the 
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, by the 
reporting date, in the country where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current 
income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the 
statement of comprehensive income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the 
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
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interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 
 
Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 
 
 Where the deferred tax liability arises from an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss. 
 
 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in the subsidiary 
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable 
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except: 
 
 Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 
 
 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in the 
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the 
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at 
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. 
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other 
comprehensive income (loss) or directly in equity. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set 
off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred tax relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 
 
Sales tax 
 
Revenues, expenses, liabilities and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except: 
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 Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable 

from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost 
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable. 

 
 Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included. 
 
 The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 

included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 
 

(j) Earnings (Loss) Per Share 
 
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings (loss) per unit data for its shares. Basic 
earnings (loss) per unit are calculated by dividing the income (loss) for the period by the weighted 
average number of shares that are outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per unit 
are calculated using the weighted average number of common and potential shares outstanding 
during the period. Potential units consist of the incremental units issuable upon the exercise of 
stock options and warrants using the treasury method. The treasury method assumes that the 
proceeds from the issuance of potential shares are used to purchase shares at the average market 
price during the period. 

 
(k) Financial Instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Corporation becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments classified as amortized 
costs or FVTOCI are included with the carrying amount of such instruments. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments classified as fair 
value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are recognized immediately in the profit or loss within the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 
 
Financial Assets 
 
From January 1, 2017, the Corporation classifies its financial assets in the following measurement 
categories: those to be measured at amortized cost and those to be measured subsequently at fair 
value (either through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or through profit or loss 
(FVTPL)). The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.  
 
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 
 
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are measured at amortized cost less 
impairment losses: the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash-flows; the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding; and the financial asset was not acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling in the near term or for short-term profit taking (held-for-trading). 
 
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 
 
All other financial assets, except equity and debt instruments as described below, are remeasured 
at fair value and classified as fair value through profit or loss. The gains or losses, if any, arising 
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on re-measurement of FVTPL are recognized in profit or loss within the consolidated statements 
of comprehensive income.  
 
The method of measurement of instruments in debt instruments will depend on the business 
model in which the instrument is held. For instruments in equity instruments, it will depend on 
whether the Corporation has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to 
account for the equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). 
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining 
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the financial liability is either held-for-trading 
or is designated at FVTPL. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are remeasured in subsequent reporting 
periods at fair value. Any gains or losses arising on re-measurement of held-for-trading financial 
liabilities are recognized in profit or loss within the consolidated statements of comprehensive 
income. Such gains or losses recognized in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the 
financial liabilities. Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as 
FVTPL are measured at amortized cost. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are 
measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest rate method. The 
effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability (or 
financial asset) and of allocating interest expense (or income) over the expected life of the 
financial liability (or financial asset). All financial assets and financial liabilities held by the 
Corporation are measured at amortized cost except for the investment in Riotus SODO LLC. 
 
Impairment 
 
The Corporation assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its 
assets carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, the 
Corporation applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected 
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. 
 
The Corporation has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively but has elected not to restate comparative 
information as there is no impact on the financial statements of the Corporation from adopting 
IFRS 9. As a result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in 
accordance with the Corporation’s previous accounting policy which reflects the same 
measurement of IFRS 9. 
 
The accounting policies were changed to comply with the full requirements of IFRS 9 as issued 
by the IASB. IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition classification 
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities; derecognition of financial 
instruments; impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 also significantly 
amends other standards dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures. The total impact on retained earnings due to classification and measurement of 
financial instruments as at January 1, 2016 and the date of these financial statements was NIL. 
 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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(l) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 
 
The Company has not entered any derivative financial instruments and has not applied hedge 
accounting for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and year ended December 31, 2018. 
 
(m) Leases 
 
Finance leases, which transfer to the Corporation substantially all the risks and benefits incidental 
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value 
of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Operating 
lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 
 
(n) Borrowing costs 
 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of an asset 
that necessarily takes a substantial year of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in 
the year they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs 
relating to the borrowing of funds. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 
2017, the Company did not capitalize any borrowing costs. 

 
5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

 
The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires management to 
make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets, and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the 
reporting years. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability 
affected in future years. 
 
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the 
following judgment, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
Impairment exists when the carrying value of a non-financial asset or cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to dispose and its 
value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash 
flows are derived from the Company’s budget and do not include restructuring activities, if any, 
that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the 
non-financial asset’s performance of the cash-generating unit being tested. The recoverable 
amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as 
the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The key 
assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the cash-generating units may include 
a sensitivity analysis. 

 
Taxes 
 
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount 
and timing of future taxable income. Given the range of business relationships and the long-term 
nature of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the 
assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to 
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tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on 
reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities. The amount of 
such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and 
differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. 

 
Deferred tax assets, if any, are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant 
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be 
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with 
future tax planning strategies. 
 
Fair value of financial instruments 
 
Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of 
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation 
techniques including the discounted cash flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from 
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is 
required in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such as 
liquidity risk, credit risk, and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect 
the reported fair value of financial instruments. 
 

6. RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS  
 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure 
  
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure was amended to require additional disclosures on 
transition from IAS 39 to IFRS 9. IFRS 7 is effective on adoption of IFRS 9, which is effective 
for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2018. The Company adopted the 
amendments to IFRS 7 on January 1, 2018. 
 
 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments  
                
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which reflects all 
phases of the financial instruments project and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new 
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application 
permitted. The Company adopted IFRS 9 on January 1, 2018. 
  
The Company has completed its assessment of the impact from this new standard. IFRS 9 
introduces new requirements to determine the measurement basis of financial assets, involving 
the cash flow characteristics of assets and the business models under which they are managed. 
Accordingly, the basis of measurement for the Company’s financial assets may change. IFRS 9 
affects the accounting for available-for-sale equity securities, requiring a designation, on an 
instrument by instrument basis, between recording both unrealized and realized gains and losses 
either through (i) other comprehensive income (“OCI”) with no recycling to profit and loss or (ii) 
profit and loss. The Company will be electing to classify its available-for-sale equity investments 
at Fair Value through OCI (“FVOCI”) as these equity investments would be for strategic 
purposes. The FVOCI election will be made upon initial recognition, on an instrument-by-
instrument basis and once made is irrevocable. Gains and losses on these instruments including 
when derecognized or sold are recorded in equity and are not subsequently reclassified to the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss).   

 
For other financial instruments, there are no significant changes in the classification and 
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measurement of the Company’s financial assets. 
  

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers  
 

The IASB replaced IAS 18 Revenue, in its entirety with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers. The standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two 
approaches to recognizing revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model features a contract-
based five-step analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and when revenue is 
recognized. IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with 
early application permitted.   

 
The Company adopted IFRS 15 on January 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective approach 
where the accumulative impact of adoption will be recognized in retained earnings as of January 
1, 2018 and comparatives will not be restated.       

 
The Company has completed its assessment of the impact from this new standard. Under IFRS 
15, revenue from the sale of cannabis would be recognized at a point in time when control over 
the goods have been transferred to the customer. The Company transfers control and satisfies its 
performance obligation upon delivery and acceptance by the customer, which is consistent with 
the Company’s revenue recognition policy under IAS 18.    
  
IFRS 16 Leases  
 
In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases, which will replace IAS 17 Leases. This 
standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and 
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of 
low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the 
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The 
standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier 
application permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers at 
or before the date of initial adoption of IFRS 16. The Company adopted IFRS 16 on January 1, 
2019 and recorded right of use asset and liability as of March 31, 2019. 
 

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand in the amount of $1,499,687 as at 
March 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 - $670,894). 
 

8.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

 

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Trade receivables $ 805,710                   $ 9,882                       
Less: Impairment (55,000)                    (5,000)                      

Total trade and other receivables $ 750,710                   $ 4,882                        
 
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 day terms. The aging analysis 
of trade receivables is as follows: 
 

<30 days 30-60 days >60 days
March 31, 2019 805,710$              440,011$              204,740$              105,704$              55,255$                
December 31, 2018 9,882$                  1,254$                  -$                      3,763$                  4,865$                  

Total
Neither past due 

nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
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Provision for uncollectable accounts is provided by using the allowance method based on 
management estimates and past experience. The reserve for uncollectable accounts was $55,000 
and $5,000 at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively. 
 

9.  INVENTORIES 
 

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Raw materials (at cost) $ 760,751                   $ -                                
Packaging materials (at cost) 249,041                   33,197                     
Finished goods (at cost) 879,356                   167,802                   
Inventory in production (at cost) -                                39,499                     
Less: Impairment (236,547)                 (5,100)                      

Total inventories (lower of cost and NRV) $ 1,652,601                $ 235,398                     
  
10.  PREPAID EXPENSES 
 

 

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Prepaid insurance $ 59,430                     $ 86,818                     
Security deposits 4,350                       4,350                       
Prepaid legal expense 2,500                       -                                

Total prepaid expenses $ 66,280                     $ 91,168                      
 
 The Company’s insurance is being amortized over the life of the policy. 
 
11.  INVESTMENTS  
 

Investment in Riotus SODO LLC 
 
Effective August 29, 2018, the Company purchased 500,000 Class A units of Riotus SODO LLC. 
Each unit was purchased at $1.00 for $500,000 in total. This represents a 20.6% ownership 
position but ICI does not have a position of significant influence.  Riotus SODO provides its 
investors with an opportunity to earn profits on facilities and operations expansion in the cannabis 
industry. Riotus SODO is focused on the expansion/development of an 8,000 ft2 (350+ light) 
cultivation facility in Seattle, WA. The operator of the facility is Solstice Holdings Inc. 
(“Solstice”), a leading brand and distribution company in Washington State. Riotus SODO is 
partnered with Solstice Holdings LLC, a leading branding and distribution company in the State 
of Washington. If Solstice is able to realize the expected benefits from the Expansion Project and 
the Company’s investment in Riotus SODO performs to plan, the Company should receive cash 
distributions of approximately $25,000 a month starting in the second quarter of 2019 for 21 
months, and then approximately $10,000 a month thereafter for approximately 4 years. There are 
no costs associated with the distributions or offsetting amounts expected to be deducted. In 
accordance with IFRS 11 the Company has accounted for its investment in Riotus SODO at cost. 
 
Acquisition of La Vida Verde, Inc. 
 
On September 19, 2018, the Company signed a definitive agreement for the acquisition of 51% of 
La Vida Verde, Inc. LVV is a highly respected branded cannabis product manufacturer and 
distributor based in Santa Cruz, CA. The business has powerful growth prospects due to its family 
of brands including Skunk Feather concentrates, organic LVV edibles and other cannabis 
products. La Vida Verde was founded and is run by Bryce Berryessa and Eric Hara, two of the 
most respected veterans of the cannabis industry in California.  The Company acquired its equity 
interest in LVV for $6 million (comprised of $3.0 million in common shares of the Company and 
$3 million in cash) and investing an additional $2 million of working capital into the business. 
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The transaction was at arm's length.  
 
The acquisition was completed through two significant closing events - the first on November 1, 
2018, where the Company paid $1 million to acquire an 8.5% equity interest and invested 
$600,000 into the business and a second closing on January 3, 2019, where the Company 
acquired an additional 43% of LVV in exchange for the issuance of 25,225,161 Common Shares 
of the Company and schedule principal seller's notes for an aggregate of $2,000,000 due as to 
50% on March 31, 2019 and October 31, 2019. The notes bear interest at a rate of 5% per annum 
and are secured by a pledge of the securities purchased. An additional working capital investment 
in the business of $700,000 is expected be made in Q2 2019.  
 
As of December 31, 2018, the Company had invested $1,600,000 in LVV through the acquisition 
of shares and capital investment. The Company accounted for its investment in LVV at cost for 
the year ended December 31, 2018. 
 
As of March 31, 2019, the Company had invested $2,550,000 in LVV through the acquisition of 
shares and capital investment. The Company has consolidated LVV as of January 3, 2019. 
 
The capital investments in LVV supported an expansion of sales and operations staff, inventory 
required by rapid growth and to expand manufacturing capacity. 
 
Intangible assets as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 consisted of the following:  
 

Estimated 
useful lifes March 31, 2019

December 31, 
2018

Customer list 3 years 5,363,204$                -$             
Trademarks 3 years 3,575,470                 -               
Less: accumulate amortization (946,591)                   -               
Intangible assets, net 7,992,083$                -$              
 
Total amortization expense was $946,591 and $0 for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 
2018, respectively. The fair value of the intellectual property associated with the assets acquired 
was estimated by using a discounted cash flow approach based on future economic benefits. In 
summary, the estimate was based on a projected income approach and related discounted cash 
flows over three years, with applicable risk factors assigned to assumptions in the forecasted 
results. 
 
The cost to acquire these assets has been preliminarily allocated to the assets acquired according 
to estimated fair values and is subject to adjustment when additional information concerning asset 
valuations is finalized, but no later than January 3, 2020. The preliminary allocation is as follows: 
 

Purchase Price Allocation
Fair value of cash 1,600,000$                    
Fair value of common stock 1,590,336                      
Fair value of notes 2,000,000                      
Non-controlling interest 5,614,957                      
Fair Value of consideration 10,805,293$                  

Customer list 5,363,204$                    
Trademarks 3,575,470                      
Acquired assets 1,866,619                      

10,805,293$                   
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The results of operations of LVV were included in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of 
Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2019. 

  
12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 

Fixed Assets
Total Total

Cost:
At December 31, 2016 $ 827                           $ 827                           
Additions 1,495                       1,495                       
Disposals (1,495)                      (1,495)                      
At December 31, 2017 827                           827                           
Additions 6,466                       6,466                       
Disposals -                                -                                
At December 31, 2018 $ 7,293                       $ 7,293                       
Additions 6,536                       6,536                       
Assets acquired in acquisition 161,814                   161,814                   
Disposals -                                -                                
At March 31, 2019 $ 175,643                   $ 175,643                   

Depreciation and impairment:
At December 31, 2016 $ 253                           $ 253                           
Depreciation for the year 587                           587                           
Impairment (312)                         (312)                         
At December 31, 2017 $ 528                           $ 528                           
Depreciation for the year 389                           389                           
Impairment -                                -                                
At December 31, 2018 $ 917                           $ 917                           
Depreciation for the year 10,326                     10,326                     
Impairment -                                -                                
At March 31, 2019 $ 11,243                     $ 11,243                     

Net Book Value:
At March 31, 2019 $ 164,400                   $ 164,400                   
At December 31, 2018 $ 6,376                       $ 6,376                       
At December 31, 2017 $ 299                           $ 299                            
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13.        INTANGIBLE ASSETS- JUJU LICENSE 
 

 

License Agreement
Cost:
At December 31, 2016 $ 220,000                     
Additions -                                  
Disposals -                                  
At December 31, 2017 $ 220,000                     
Additions -                                  
Disposals -                                  
At December 31, 2018 $ 220,000                     
Additions -                                  
Disposals -                                  
At March 31, 2019 $ 220,000                     

Amortization and impairment:
At January 1, 2016 $ 13,750                       
Amortization charge for the year 11,000                       
Impairment -                                  
At December 31, 2016 -                                  
Amortization charge for the year 11,000                       
Impairment -                                  
At December 31, 2017 $ 35,750                       
Amortization charge for the year 11,000                       
Impairment -                                  
At December 31, 2018 $ 46,750                       
Amortization charge for the year 2,750                          
Impairment -                                  
At March 31, 2019 $ 49,500                       

Net Book Value:
At March 31, 2019 $ 170,500                     
At December 31, 2018 $ 173,250                     
At December 31, 2017 $ 184,250                       

 
14.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
  

 

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Trade payables $ 974,245                   $ 201,954                   
Accrued liabilities 154,011                   1,991                       
Credit cards 90,500                     110,878                   

Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,218,756                $ 314,823                    
 

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities: 
 Trade payables are non-interest bearing 
 Accrued liabilities are non-interest bearing 
 Commodity and business taxes payable are non-interest bearing 
 

15. DEFERRED REVENUE 
 

The Company has sub-license agreements with licensees to market, sell and distribute certain 
licensed products. The Company has sub-license agreements that range from one to three years 
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with renewal if both parties approve. The amount is recognized equally over the term of the 
sub-license agreement. 

 

           

Total
At December 31, 2016 $ 43,219                     
Arising during the year 5,694                       
Utilized (47,871)                    
At December 31, 2017 $ 1,042                       
Arising during the year -                                
Utilized (1,042)                      
At December 31, 2018 $ -                                

Current - December 31, 2018 $ -                                
Non-current - December 31, 2018 -                                
Total deferred revenue $ -                                 

              
16.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS 

 
Due from former officer and director 
 
On March 16, 2017, a former officer and director was issued 536,522 shares in exchange for a $32,000 note 
receivable. The note is due on March 15, 2020 with accrued interest of $1,310 at March 31, 2019.  

  
Due to former officer and director 
 
At March 31, 2019, the total loans from a former officer and director were as follows: 
 

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Note payable $ 761,600                   $ 911,600                   
Accrued interest- note payable 29,179                     17,951                     

Total note payable $ 790,779                   $ 929,551                    
 

The loan represents advances from a former officer and director with no repayment terms. The advances 
accrue simple interest at a rate of 2% per annum starting January 1, 2015. On September 4, 2018, the 
Company entered into a Promissory Note with the former officer and director for $941,600. The Note is 
due September 20, 2020 and provides for monthly payments of $26,155 plus interest. Interest accrues at 6% 
from September 4, 2018. 
 
Due to LVV Stockholders  
 

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Note payable $ 1,750,000                $ -                                
Accrued interest- note payable 23,596                     -                                

Total note payable $ 1,773,596                $ -                                 
 
On January 3, 2019, the Company issued Promissory Notes and Pledge Agreements to the stockholders off 
LVV totalling $2,000,000. The Notes are due on October 31, 2019 and provide for interest at 5%. The 
payments are collateralized by shares of LVV common stock. The Company paid $250,000 under the Notes 
during the three months ended March 31, 2019. The Company accrued $23,596 as at March 31, 2019.  
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Due to Other 
 

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Note payable $ 55,000                     $ -                                
Accrued interest- note payable -                                -                                

Total note payable $ 55,000                     $ -                                 
              

On January 1, 2018, LVV was advanced $110,000. On December 11, 2018, LVV repaid $55,000. The 
remaining $55,000 is unsecured and due on demand. The holder has not made a demand for payment. 

 
             Certain Relationships              

On July 16, 2018, the Company entered into agreements with Messrs. Gormley and Pomroy regarding the 
services to be provided by them. The parties were granted 12,292,969 options and 4,917,188 options, 
respectively, under the Company’s stock option plan and 31,961,720 and 39,337,502 performance warrants, 
respectively. The options are exercisable into common shares at a strike price of $0.07 per share for 5 years. 
The performance warrants are exercisable into common shares at a strike price of $0.07 for a period of five 
years with 50% of the warrants being immediately vested and 50% of the warrants vested over a one year 
period or immediately upon closing of a Significant Acquisition, as defined in National Instrument 51-102 
Continuous Disclosure Obligations. The acquisition of of LVV on January 3, 2019 triggered the vesting of 
the second 50% of the warrants issued. 

The Company entered into a non-binding agreement dated August 8, 2018, for a draw-down equity facility 
of up to CDN$10,000,000 over a term of 24 months. The agreement provided for equity private placement 
offerings (the “Offerings”), to be conducted between the Company and Alumina Partners (Ontario) Ltd. 
(“Alumina Partners”), a subsidiary of Alumina Partners LLC, a New York based private equity firm. The 
draw-downs are at the sole discretion of the Company and may be for up to $1,000,000 per draw down and 
would consist of the issuance by the Company of units, whereby each unit consists of one common share (a 
“Common Share”) and up to one common share purchase warrant (each whole warrant, a "Warrant"), 
and each unit being purchased at a discount ranging from 15% to 25% of the then current market price of 
the Common Shares on the Canadian Securities Exchange (the “CSE”). Alumina Partners will only receive 
a full warrant when an Offering is priced at or above $0.30.  The exercise price of the Warrants will be at a 
25% premium over the then current market price of the Common Shares and will provide for an accelerated 
expiry should the Company’s Common Shares trade on the CSE, for a period of 10 consecutive trading 
days, at a premium of at least 100% above the warrant exercise price. The Company utilized this facility in 
August 2018, issuing an aggregate of 23,454,886 common shares and 11,727,442 warrants for gross 
proceeds of Cdn$1,450,000. 
 
Investment in Riotus SODO LLC 
 
Effective August 29, 2018, the Company purchased 500,000 Class A units of Riotus SODO LLC. Each unit 
was purchased at $1.00 US of $500,000 in total. This represents a 20.6% ownership position but ICI does 
not have a position of significant influence.  Riotus SODO provides its investors with an opportunity to 
earn profits on facilities and operations expansion in the cannabis industry. Riotus SODO is focused on the 
expansion/development of an 8,000 ft2 (350+ light) cultivation facility in Seattle, WA. The operator of the 
facility is Solstice Holdings Inc. (“Solstice”), a leading brand and distribution company in Washington 
State. Riotus SODO is partnered with Solstice Holdings LLC, a leading branding and distribution company 
in the State of Washington. If Solstice is able to realize the expected benefits from the Expansion Project 
and the Company’s investment in Riotus SODO performs to plan, the Company should receive cash 
distributions of approximately $25,000 a month starting in the second quarter of 2019 for 21 months, and 
then approximately $10,000 a month thereafter for approximately 4 years. There are no costs associated 
with the distributions or offsetting amounts expected to be deducted. In accordance with IFRS 11 the 
Company has accounted for its investment in Riotus SODO at cost. 
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17.  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
 

Fair Values 
 

 Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amount and fair value of the Company's 
financial instruments that are carried in the financial statements.   
 

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,499,687                $ 670,894                   $ 1,499,687                $ 670,894                   
Trade and accounts receivables 750,710                   4,882                       750,710                   4,882                       
Investment in Riotus LLC (Note 11) 500,000                   500,000                   500,000                   500,000                   

Total financial assets $ 2,750,397                $ 1,175,776                $ 2,750,397                $ 1,175,776                

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,218,756                $ 314,823                   $ 1,218,756                $ 314,823                   

Total financial liabilities $ 1,218,756                $ 314,823                   $ 1,218,756                $ 314,823                   

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Carrying Amount Fair Value

 
 
The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which 
the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties 
in an arm's length transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.   

 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 
 
 Trade and other receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, other current 

liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of 
these instruments. 

 
 Fair values of quoted instruments are based on price quotations at the reporting date. The 

fair value of unquoted instruments and other financial liabilities (loans payable) are 
estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on 
similar terms, credit risk, and remaining maturities. 

 
Fair value hierarchy 
 
As at March 31, 2019, the Company held the following financial instruments measured at fair 
value: cash and cash equivalents (level 1) and investment in Riotus SOS LLC (level 3). 

 
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of 
financial instruments by valuation technique: 
 
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair 
value are observable, either directly or indirectly. 
 
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
that are not based on observable market data. 
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and 
Level 2 fair value measurements and the investment in Riotus SODO LLC was recorded as a 
Level 3 fair value measurement. 
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December 31, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,499,687                $ 1,499,687                $ -                                $ 500,000                   

Total assets measured at fair value $ 1,499,687                $ 1,499,687                $ -                                $ 500,000                   

No liabilities were measured at fair value $ -                                $ -                                $ -                                $ -                                

    
18.  EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 
 
 2017 Reverse Merger 
  

On September 21, 2017, the Company elected to be treated as a corporation for tax purposes and 
prepared and filed Articles of Merger in accordance with the Plan of Merger and Plan of 
Conversion contained in the Share Exchange Agreement, whereby International Cannabrands 
Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of GEA merged into the Company.  The Company then prepared 
and filed Articles of Conversion whereby the Company converted from a limited liability 
company into a corporation concurrent with the merger).  
 
As a result, the three-cornered amalgamation with GEA was completed on September 21, 2017, 
which resulted in the reverse take-over of GEA. The Company issued 16,623,790 Common 
Shares and 1,836,628 Preferred Shares to the holders of DropLeaf and continued to operate the 
business through its subsidiary International Cannabrands Ltd. The Preferred Shares are limited 
to 1,837,000 Preferred Shares and each have a restricted right to convert into one hundred (100) 
Common Shares. Conversion is subject to a restriction that no more than 40% of the total number 
of Common Shares and Preferred Shares may be held by residents of the United States. The 
Preferred Shares will be automatically converted into Common Shares in certain circumstances, 
including upon the registration of the Common Shares under the United States Securities Act of 
1933, as amended. The holders of Preferred Shares were entitled to vote on an as-converted basis 
(one hundred (100) Common Shares per one Preferred Share, are entitled to receive such 
dividends as declared by the Board of Directors, on an as-converted basis (100:1) and to share in 
the remaining property and assets of the Company in the event of a liquidation, dissolution or 
winding-up of the Company, together with the holders of Common Shares, on an as-converted 
basis.  
 
Immediately prior to and in connection with the closing, the Company issued an aggregate of 
11,902,439 Common Shares at a price of $0.05 per common share to raise gross proceeds of 
Cdn$595,122. In addition, 10,541,400 Common Shares were issued following Closing at a 
deemed price of Cdn$0.06 per share to a party at arm’s length, as a finder’s fee in connection 
with the transaction. The Company was listed for trading on the Canadian Securities Exchange on 
September 25, 2017 and was delisted from the NEX board of the TSX Venture Exchange. 
 
Shares Outstanding 
 
The Company had 270,276,465 common shares outstanding at March 31, 2019. Each common 
shareholder is entitled to one vote for each common share held.  
 

Number of Shares Per Price Total Amount
Balance - December 31, 2018 205,732,304           $ $ -                           
Issued in private placements 31,280,000             0.075                       2,344,327                
Stock option exercise 425,000                   -                           
Service issuances 7,564,000                0.026                       192,972                   
Warrant exercises 50,000                     0.038                       1,895                       
Issuance for La Vida Verde Inc. acquisition 25,225,161             0.063                       1,590,336                

270,276,465           $ 0.064                       $ 4,129,530                 
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During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company closed non-brokered private 
placement and issued an aggregate of 31,280,000 common shares for gross proceeds of 
$2,344,327. The common shares bear a four-month hold period from the date of issuance.  

During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company issued 425,000 common shares for 
related to stock option exercises. 

During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company issued 7,564,000 common shares 
and expensed $192,972 related to service agreements. 

During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company issued 50,000 common shares and 
expensed $1,895 related to the warrant exercises. 

During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company issued 25,225,161 common shares 
valued at $1,590,336 related to the acquisition of LVV. 
 
Stock Option Incentive Plan 
 
The options granted by the Company are governed by the terms of a stock option incentive plan. 
The Company had the following stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2019: 
 

No. of common Exercise Expiry
Optionee shares under option Price Date

Officers/ directors 440,000                     0.050$                     4/12/2022
Officers/ directors 2,355,415                  0.050                       6/1/2022
Officers/ directors 3,250,000                  0.330                       1/5/2023
Officers/ directors 250,000                     0.460                       1/5/2023
Officers/ directors 250,000                     0.330                       1/31/2023
Officers/ directors 17,210,155                0.040                       7/23/2023
Officers/ directors 750,000                     0.046                       8/17/2019

Total 24,505,570                0.110$                     8/17/2019  
  

During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company cancelled 1,050,000 common 
shares at valued at $0.254 per share related to stock option grants. 
 
The following stock options are outstanding at March 31, 2019: 
 

US $

Weighted Weighted Weighted 

Average Average Average

Range of Number Remaining Life Exercise Price Number Exercise Price

Exercise Prices Outstanding In Years Exerciseable Exerciseable Exerciseable

0.040$                 17,210,155         4.33                     0.040$                 17,210,155         0.040$                 

0.046                   750,000              4.33                     0.046                   -                       -                       

0.047                   2,795,415           3.06                     0.047                   1,813,992           0.047                   

0.257                   3,500,000           3.76                     0.257                   1,250,000           0.257                   

0.359                   250,000              3.75                     0.359                   -                       -                       

24,505,570         4.10                     0.110$                 20,274,147         0.054$                  
 
The Company has stock option grants to purchase 24,505,570 common shares at an average 
exercise price of $0.118 per share The Company expensed $221,477 and $81,477 during the three 
month period ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, or $0.00 and $0.00 per share, 
respectively. The Company has $476,869 of remaining costs to be expensed and the remaining 
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life of the stock option grants is approximately 4.10 years. 
 
Warrants 
 
The following warrants are outstanding at March 31, 2019: 
 

CA $
Date Exercise

Issued Number Price Term
Private Placements
Monday, August 20, 2018 1,000,000 $0.0800 2 yrs
Wednesday, August 22, 2018 2,232,142 0.0940                     2 yrs
Tuesday, August 28, 2018 2,631,578 0.1187                     2 yrs
Tuesday, September 11, 2018 4,007,400 0.1500                     2 yrs
Wednesday, September 26, 2018 1,887,118 0.3000                     1 yr
Friday, December 7, 2018 7,896,000 0.1500                     3 yrs
Friday, December 14, 2018 5,775,000 0.1500                     3 yrs
Friday, December 21, 2018 4,200,000 0.1500                     3 yrs
Thursday, January 24, 2019 32,844,000 0.1500                     3yrs
Total 62,473,238 0.1501                     

Broker Warrants
Monday, July 30, 2018 240,000 0.0500                     2 yrs
Thursday, August 30, 2018 760,800 0.0500                     2 yrs
Friday, December 7, 2018 526,400 0.1000                     3 yrs
Friday, December 14, 2018 385,000 0.1000                     3yrs
Friday, December 21, 2018 280,000 0.1000                     3 yrs
Thursday, January 24, 2019 2,189,600 0.1000                     3 yrs
Wednesday, January 30, 2019 966,000 0.1000                     3 yrs
Total broker warrants 5,347,800 0.0906                     

Performance Warrants
Exercise

Date Issued Number Price Term
July 16, 2018 71,299,222 0.0700                     5 yrs
September 14, 2018 10,350,000 0.2750                     5 yrs
Total performance warrants 81,649,222 0.0960                     

Total 149,470,260 0.118$                      
 

The Company expensed $272,573 and $0 during the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 
2018. The price is in CA $. 

 
 19.  INCOME TAXES 
 

The following is a reconciliation of income taxes, calculated at the combined federal and 
provincial statutory income tax rates, to the income tax provision recorded in the consolidated 
financial statements: 
 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Loss from operations before income taxes (3,730,803)                   $ (520,802)                       
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20.  EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net earnings for the year attributable 
to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding during the year. 
 

             The following reflects the earnings and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share        
             computations: 

 
March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Net loss (numerator) $ (3,730,803)              $ (520,802)                 
Weighted average units outstanding (denominator) 257,341,328           80,400,455             

Loss per unit (basic and diluted) $ (0.01)                        $ (0.01)                         
 

 21.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Lease Commitments 
 
On March 21, 2019, the Company renewed a lease agreement for office space in Denver, 
Colorado with 1045 Lincoln, LLC. The monthly payment is $1,200 per month. The lease expires 
March 31, 2020. 
 
On October 22, 2018, the Company executed a lease agreement for office space in Los Angeles, 
CA with WeWork 12655 Jefferson Blvd Tenant LLC that expires on October 31, 2019. The 
monthly payment is $3,600 per month. 

 
On May 20, 2019, the Company cancelled its lease agreement with WeWork and executed a lease 
agreement for office space in Los Angeles, CA with WeWork 12655 Jefferson Blvd Tenant LLC 
that expires on May 20, 2020. The monthly payment is $5,950 per month. 
 
Royalty Commitment under License Agreement 
 
International Cannabrands holds an exclusive license, effective October 1, 2014, as amended and 
restated December 4, 2018, for the "JuJu Royal" trademark as well as the name, image, and 
personality rights of Julian "JuJu" Marley for products associated with the cannabis industry. The 
license agreement has an initial term of five years and is extended for an additional 10 years up to 
a maximum initial term of 20 years. Thereafter there is a continuing right of first refusal for up to 
40 years to match any offers being contemplated by the licensor. A onetime fee in the amount of 
$220,000 was paid to the Licensor upon execution of the License Agreement. Annual royalty fees 
are paid on a percentage of the net sales of licensed products and services subject to certain 
minimums. The royalty and sublicensing fees constitute the base royalty fees for the first 4 years 
of the agreement. In the fifth year of the agreement the base royalty agreement becomes a fixed 
fee. For each year after the fifth contract year, the base royalty fees to be paid by the Licensee to 
the Licensor shall be determined by qualified intellectual property business evaluation appraiser. 
On December 4, 2018, the Company agreed to pay base royalty payments of $50,000 in 2018 
(paid), $75,000 on June 30, 2019, $75,000 on December 30, 2019 and $50,000 on June 30, 2020. 

 
LVV Payments 
 
This represents amounts due to LVV related to acquisition. 
 



 

29 
 

Note Repayments  
 

This note repayment relates to the note with a former director and officer, LVV stockholders and 
other. 

 
Legal Proceedings 

Occasionally, the Company may be a party to legal claims or proceedings of which the outcomes 
are ssubject to significant uncertainty. In accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the Company will assess the likelihood of an adverse judgment 
for any outstanding claim; as well as ranges of probable losses.. 

Commitments and contingencies at March 31, 2019 and for the next year were as follows: 
 

March 31, 2019
Lease commitments $ 59,650                         
Royalty commitment $ 150,000                       
La Vida Verde, Inc. payments $ 700,000                       
Currrent portion of note payable $ 2,338,596                     
 
22.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 
 
The Company’s primary risk management objective is to protect the Company’s financial 
position and cash flow. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, 
foreign exchange risk and liquidity risk. 
 
The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks and advises on 
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The 
Company’s senior management provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk-taking 
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are 
identified, measured, and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and group risk 
appetite. All derivative activities, if any, for risk management purposes are carried out by a team 
that has the appropriate skills, experience, and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no 
trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken. 
 
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are 
summarized below. 

 
(a)  Credit Risk 
 

             The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is best represented by the carrying  
             amount of the Company's cash and accounts receivables. 
 

The Company is exposed to a $1,018,930 credit risk with respect to cash from the potential 
default by counterparties that carry the Company's cash, and attempts to mitigate this risk by 
dealing only with large financial institutions with good credit ratings. All the financial institutions 
that the Company deals with meet these qualifications. The Company is exposed to normal credit 
risk with respect to the Company’s accounts receivables. To mitigate this credit risk, the 
Company evaluates the creditworthiness of its customers and establishes credit limits 
accordingly. The Company may require deposits or collateral (letters of credit or liens) from 
customers prior to shipping. The Company provides for anticipated credit losses based on 
incurred losses. 

 
            The aging of accounts receivables are as follows:  
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2019 2018

(a) Credit Risk (accounts receivable aging):
Current $ 440,011                   $ 1,254                       
1-30 days 204,740                   -                                
31-60 days 105,704                   3,763                       
61-90 days 55,255                     4,865                       
More than 90 days -                                -                                

805,710                   9,882                       
Less:Impairment (55,000)                    (5,000)                      

Total credit risk $ 750,710                   $ 4,882                        
 

(b)  Liquidity Risk 
 

              The Company manages risk by forecasting cash flows from operations and anticipated investing  
              and financing activities. To maintain an optimum level of cash flow, the Company actively  
              pursues the collection of its accounts receivables by closely monitoring and controlling the  
              operation and capital expenditures. The future minimum operating lease commitments and  
              contractual repayments on bank loans and other obligations are as follows:  

  
2019 2020 2021

(b) Liquidity Risk:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites $ 1,218,756                $ -                           $ -                           
Operating lease and commitment 59,650                     33,350                     -                           
Royalty commitment 150,000                   50,000                     -                           
La Vida Verde, Inc. payment 700,000                   -                           -                           
Currrent portion of note payable 2,338,596                330,779                   -                           

Total liquidity risk $ 4,467,002                $ 414,129                   $ -                            
         

In addition, the Company may have financials obligations on its investments, including the 
proposed acquisition of LVV. 
 
(c)  Market risk 
 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise several types of risk: 
interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk, and other price risk, such as equity risk.  
 

            (i)  Interest Rate Risk 
 

            Debt and obligations under operating lease are subject to interest rate cash flow risk as the 
            required cash flow to service the debt will fluctuate because of the changing prime interest rate.  
            The interest rates on debentures are fixed. The Company did not arrange any interest rate swap or  
            financial contracts to hedge the interest rate risk. The Company does not believe it is exposed to  
            significant interest rate risk. 

 
            (ii)  Foreign Exchange Risk 

 
            Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument  
            will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk      
            of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities when  
            revenue or expense are denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional  
            currency. The Company’s functional currency is the United States Dollar. 
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            (iii)  Commodity price risk 
 

            The Company is not subject to price risk from fluctuations in market prices of commodities.  
 

            (iv)  Equity price risk 
 

            The Company has no exposure to equity price risk. 
 

23.  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The Company seeks the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Company 
manages its capital structure and adjusts it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the 
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company may issue new shares when the time is appropriate.  
 
The Company monitors the return on capital, which is defined as stockholders’ equity in the 
amount of $3,502,289 as at March 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 – ($2,070,746). 
 
The Company will continually assess the adequacy of its capital structure and capacity and make 
adjustments within the context of the Company’s strategy, economic conditions, and the risk 
characteristics of the business. 
 

24. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
 
The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through May 30, 2019, which is the date the 
financials were available to be issued. Management has determined that, except as set out below, 
no events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date substantially affects the amounts, 
presentation, and disclosure of the accompanying financial statements. 
 
On May 2, 2019, the Company issued On May 2, 2019, the Company announced the appointment 
of Corey Kite as Vice President of Sales (Northern California), Bethany Stiles as Vice President 
of Sales (Southern California), and Alison Bryce as Chief Operating Officer. 
 
On May 7, 2019, the Company announced that LVV had signed a major distribution arrangement 
with Nabis - one of California’s largest Type 11 distributors with state-wide reach to over 90% 
of the retailers in California. 
 
During May, the Company raised an aggregate of Cdn$784,531 through a series of private 
placements and in connection with the exercise of warrants. The Company issued an aggregate of 
5,079,365 common shares at a price of $0.07875 per share, 1,000,000 common shares at a price 
of $0.08 and an aggregate of 3,867,064 units at a price of $0.07875 consisting of 3,867,064 
common shares and 3,768,253 share purchase warrants. Each warrant entitles the holder to 
purchase one common share at a price of $0.13125 per share for a period of 2 years, subject to the 
ability of the Company to accelerate the expiry date to 30 days should the common shares trade at 
$0.2625 for 10 consecutive trading days following expiry of the hold period.  



 
 

 
FORM 5 – QUARTERLY LISTING STATEMENT  

January 2015 
Page 1 

 

 

SCHEDULE C 

Management’s Discussion & Analysis  
for the for the Three ended March 31, 2019 

 

(Attached) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis for the Three Months ended March 31, 2019 
 
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) comments on the consolidated financial statements of 
International Cannabrands Inc. (formerly GEA Technologies Ltd.) together with its wholly owned subsidiary International 
Cannabrands Ltd., and its indirectly owned 51% subsidiary La Vida Verde, Inc. (“LVV”) (collectively, the “Company”) for 
the three months ended March 31, 2019. All data in this MD&A has been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and 
interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations Committee. 
 
The information contained herein should be read in conjunction with the Company’s interim consolidated financial 
statements for the three months ended March 31, 2019, and the annual audited consolidated financial statements for the years 
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB, using International Accounting 
Standard (“IAS”) 34, “Interim Financial Reporting”.   
 
The Company initially acquired International Cannabrands Ltd. ("International Cannabrands"), a private company 
incorporated under the laws of Nevada (the "Transaction") in September 2017.  The Transaction constituted a reverse 
acquisition of the Company by International Cannabrands. For accounting purposes, International Cannabrands is considered 
the acquirer and the Company the acquiree. Accordingly, the financial statements are a continuation of the financial 
statements of International Cannabrands and references to the “Company” will mean the consolidated entity subsequent to 
the date of the Transaction and to DropLeaf LLC prior to that date. The financial statements include the financial position 
and results of International Cannabrands and the Company.  On January 3, 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of 
51% of a micro-brand and manufacturer in La Vida Verde, Inc. (“La Vida Verde” or “LVV”) a private company based in 
California. The financial results of LVV are consolidated with the financial results of the Company for the three month 
period ended March 31, 2019. 
Unless the context otherwise requires, all references to the “Company”, “our”, “us”, and “we” refers to the Company as 
consolidated with its subsidiaries.   
 
This MD&A has been prepared by management as of May 30, 2019.  The financial statements and related notes, and this 
MD&A have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. All amounts are presented in United States dollars, 
unless otherwise noted. 
 
Advisory Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 
 
This MD&A contains forward-looking statements. When used in this MD&A the words “may”, “would”, “could”, “will”, 
“intend”, “plan”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “seek”, “propose”, “estimate”, “expect”, and similar expressions, as they relate to 
the Company, are intended to identify forward-looking statements. In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking 
statements with respect to, among others things, our objectives, goals, strategies, intentions, plans, estimates, outlook, 
expected growth and business opportunities. Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-
looking statements are reasonable, such statements involve risks and uncertainties and undue reliance should not be placed 
on such statements. Certain material factors or assumptions are applied in making forward-looking statements, including 
without limitation, factors and assumptions regarding revenues, operating costs and tariffs, taxes and fees, changes in market 
competition, governmental or regulatory developments, changes in tax legislation and general economic conditions. Actual 
results may differ materially from those expressed or implied in such statements.  Important factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materially from these expectations include, among other things:  (a) the continuing market demand for the 
Company’s products; (b) the Company’s expectations regarding certain revenue, profit and cash flow targets; (c) the 
Company’s ability to successfully execute on its growth strategies, including attracting new customers and distributors, 
successfully launching new products, and marketing or branding campaigns; (d) the Company’s ability to gain access to, and 
generate sales in, domestic and international markets; (e) the Company’s ability to attract and retain key employees, 
executives and advisors; (f) the Company’s ability to raise working capital in the near to medium term; (g) assumptions 
about possible sources of funding for future growth; (h) interest rates and maturity dates applicable to the Company’s 
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borrowings; and (i) other expectations, intentions, projections and plans contained in this document that are not historical 
facts. 
 
The Company cautions you that the foregoing list may not contain all of the forward-looking statements made in this 
document. The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially from those expressed in, or 
implied by, these forward-looking statements and, accordingly, no assurances can be given that any of the events anticipated 
by the forward-looking statements will transpire or occur, or if any of them do, what benefits that the Company will derive 
therefrom.  Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive.  When relying upon our forward-
looking statements to make decisions with respect to the Company, investors and others should carefully consider the 
foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. All subsequent forward-looking statements, whether written or 
oral, attributable to the Company or persons acting on its behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary 
statements. Furthermore, the forward-looking statements contained in this document are made as at the date of this document 
and the Company does not undertake any obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking 
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required by applicable 
securities laws. 
 
GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS on a going concern basis that presumes the realization 
of assets and discharge of liabilities in the normal course of business.  The financial statements and this MD&A do not 
reflect the adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern assumption was not appropriate. 
 
The Company has incurred a net loss of $3,885,024 for the three months ended March 31, 2019 ($4,443,159 for the year 
ended December 31, 2018) and has an accumulated deficit of $10,563,615 for the three months ended March 31, 2019 
($6,996,295 as at December 31, 2018). The Company expects such losses to lessen moving forward into the foreseeable 
future as it continues to develop and commercialize its products. The Company has funded its current cash needs primarily 
through private placements of equity to investors. The Company anticipates addressing future financial requirements through 
the additional issuance of equity and/or debt from public capital markets. 
 
The Company has not yet realized profitable operations and has mainly relied on non-operational sources of financing to 
fund operations. Management has been able to raise sufficient funds to finance its operations in the past through private 
placements of both equity and debt and will need to continue to do so to fund operations in the future.  The financial 
statements and this MD&A do not include any adjustments to the amounts and classification of assets and liabilities that 
might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.  Such adjustments could be material. 
 
ABOUT International Cannabrands Inc. 
 
The Company was incorporated under the provisions of the Business Corporations Act in the Province of Alberta on May 3, 
2011. The common shares of the Company are listed and posted for trading on the Canadian Securities Exchange under the 
symbol JUJU. The Company's head office is located at Suite #106, 1045 Lincoln Street, Denver, Colorado 80203. 
 
International Cannabrands was initially built around an exclusive, worldwide license it obtained in 2014 to use Julian Marley’s 
name and image for cannabis and branded merchandise relating to cannabis.  In November 2014, the Company began licensing 
growers, oil extractors, vape manufacturers, edible manufacturers and merchandise companies to produce products bearing the 
trademark Julian Marley, JuJu Royal. These early agreements were structured with an initial upfront licensing fee and ongoing 
royalty payments. The initial business model did not gain the desired traction and did not generate sufficient revenues. 
 
On July 16, 2018, the Company hired a new CEO, Steve Gormley and a strategic and financial advisor, Neal Pomroy with a view 
to implementing a new business strategy for the growth of the Company.  In August 2018, the Board of Directors formally 
approved a strategy with the following three elements: 
 

 aggregating emerging brands who sell consumer packaged goods in the cannabis industry 
 identifying and acquiring regional distribution companies, and  
 acquiring select, highly profitable value chain investments, including, select cultivation (canopy ft2) and/or 

manufacturing and distribution capacity.  
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Effective August 29, 2018, the Company made its first investment in a value chain investment in the Washington cannabis sector 
with its investment of $500,000 in Riotus Sodo LLC, a series LLC structured to provide services for cannabis cultivation in 
Washington State. 
 
.In September 2018, the Company took an important step and restructured its share capital, which resulted in the conversion of all 
the outstanding preferred share class and the cancellation of both common and preferred shares representing an aggregate of 
115,766,613 voting shares. The Company’s stock trading symbol was changed from “JUJU.A” to “JUJU”. 
 
On September 19, 2018, the Company signed a definitive agreement for the acquisition of 51% of La Vida Verde, Inc. (“La Vida 
Verde” or “LVV”), a highly respected licensed cannabis product manufacturer and distributor based in Santa Cruz, CA.  The 
Company completed the acquisition on January 3, 2019, for $6 million (comprised of $3.0 million in common shares of the 
Company and $3 million in cash) and investing an additional $2 million of working capital into the business. The transaction was 
at arm's length.  
 
LVV is a U.S. focused, consumer packaged goods (CPG) company operating in the cannabis industry. LVV holds a 
manufacturing license issued by the California Department of Public Health and a distribution license issued by the California 
Bureau of Cannabis Control. With these licenses, it continues to build its infrastructure of retailers and has a broker and 
distribution network in California to bring its proprietary brands to market.  LVV has an agreement with one of California’s 
largest Type 11 distributors with state-wide reach who currently distributes to over 90% of the retailers in California. 
 
LVV has powerful growth prospects due to its family of brands including Skunk Feather concentrates, La Vida Verde organic 
edibles and tinctures, and Blank Brand edibles. See “Products” below.   LVV creates products geared towards a health- and 
wellness-conscious consumer, while its brands capture the spirit of Santa Cruz and an aspirational surf, skate, and outdoor culture. 
The Company expects these authentic lifestyle brands will resonate deeply with consumers across the state of California, and that 
this resonance will allow us to easily expand the brands’ presence into Southern California and beyond. Additionally, we expect 
to gain an advantage when looking to capture shelf space by offering multiple brands to retailers, and by ensuring consistency of 
quality and supply through vertical integration.  
 
The acquisition was completed through two significant closing events - the first on November 1, 2018, where the Company 
acquire an 8.5% equity interest at a cost of $1 million and invested $1,300,000 into the business and a second closing on January 
2, 2019, where the Company acquired an additional 43% of LVV in exchange for the issuance of 25,225,161 Common Shares of 
the Company and schedule principal seller's notes for an aggregate of $2,000,000 due as to 50% on March 31, 2019 and October 
31, 2019. The notes bear interest at a rate of 5% per annum and are secured by a pledge of the securities purchased. An additional 
working capital investment in the business of $700,000 is expected be made in the second quarter of 2019.  
 
As of March 31, 2019, the Company had invested $2,550,000 in LVV through the acquisition of shares of LVV and contributions 
to capital. The Company has consolidated LVV as of January 3, 2019. The capital investments in LVV supported an expansion of 
sales and operations staff, inventory required by rapid growth and to expand manufacturing capacity 
 
The Company currently generates revenue the sale of its branded products and has not yet realized a return from its investment in 
Riotus SODO, LLC.  The Company has been expending effort to expand distribution and direct-to-consumer sales for its JuJu 
Royal Brand. The Company announced the launch of its award-winning CBD infused olive oil in August, and a brand refresh 
including new packaging and an enhanced product suite in October 2018. The Company is working with La Vida Verde to 
further develop the La Vida Verde brands and pursue the other elements of its business strategy. 
 
The Company currently derives, and expects to derive for the foreseeable future, all of its revenue from U.S. cannabis-related 
activities and so 100% of its balance sheet and operating statement are exposed to U.S. cannabis related activities. See “U.S. 
Regulatory Overview and Risk”.  
 
The Company has identified the following objectives for the next twelve months, with an emphasis on its strategic direction of 
aggregating emerging brands, regional distribution companies and select, highly profitable value chain investments: 
 
 Additional Acquisitions: Acquire 3-4 operations to support brand growth, enhance margins and bolster cash flow. Targets 

include the addition of select cultivation (canopy ft2) and/or manufacturing and distribution capacity. The Company intends 
to increase control of product quality/testing seed-sale and add select new brands to fill out the product portfolio. 
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 Realize the benefits from the Acquisition of 51% of La Vida Verde: The Company acquired its equity interest in LVV for $6 
million (comprised of $3.0 million in common shares of the Company and $3 million in cash – paid by way of the issuance 
of promissory notes). In addition, the Company agreed to invest $2 million of working capital into the business. The capital 
investments in LVV supported an expansion of sales and operations staff, inventory required by rapid growth and to expand 
manufacturing capacity. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had invested $1,600,000 in working capital and acquiring 
shares in LVV. The Company has accounted for its investment in LVV at cost. The Company issued 25,225,161 Common 
Shares of the Company on January 3, 2019, at a price of Cdn$0.155 per share and issued promissory notes for an aggregate 
of $2,000,000 due as to 50% on March 31, 2019 and October 31, 2019. The notes bear interest at a rate of 5% per annum and 
are secured by a pledge of the securities purchased. Subject to the raising of additional financing, an additional working 
capital investment in the business of $700,000 is expected be made in May 2019.  

 
 Aggressively Expand Distribution and Sales: The Company has developed several exciting new lines of products and 

packaging to communicate our unique brand stories. The Company has also expanded its internal sales team and expects to 
grow the business through the acquisition of new sales accounts and through larger enterprise deals.  
 

 Realize on its investment with Riotus SODO LLC: Effective August 29, 2018, the Company purchased 500,000 Class A 
units of Riotus SODO LLC at $1 per unit. This represents a 20.6% ownership position but ICI does not have a position of 
significant influence. Riotus SODO provides its investors with an opportunity to earn profits on facilities and operations 
expansion in the cannabis industry. Riotus SODO is focused on the expansion/development of a cultivation facility in 
Seattle, WA. The operator of the facility is Solstice Holdings Inc. (“Solstice”), a leading brand and distribution company in 
Washington State. The Company expects to receive cash distributions of approximately $25,000 a month starting in the 
second quarter of 2019 for 21 months, and then approximately $10,000 a month thereafter for approximately 4 years. There 
are no costs associated with the distributions or offsetting amounts expected to be deducted. In accordance with IFRS 11 the 
Company has accounted for its investment in Riotus SODO at cost. 
 

 Enter New Markets and Expand Product Line: Entering into additional distribution agreements will allow the Company to 
enter new markets and also offer new and innovative products in markets where it currently offers products. The Company 
sees an opportunity to expand each of the brands into newer and emerging US-based cannabis markets, and expects that 
consumers in these emerging markets will respond to the aspirational nature of the Marley name as well as the broad appeal 
of Santa Cruz culture as captured by LVV. Additionally, the Company intends to finalize and implement its strategy for the 
Canadian market. The Canadian market has provided its own challenges for the Company with the restrictions on advertising 
and celebrity endorsements. 

 
Products 
 
Julian Marley JuJu Royal 
 
JuJu Royal has entered into distribution agreements in California, Colorado, Florida, and Washington for flower, concentrates, 
disposable vape pens and cartridges, edibles and merchandise including grinders, T-shirts, skateboard decks, pipes and rolling 
papers. In August 2018, the Company’s JuJu Royal cannabis infused olive oils won 1st place in the 4th Annual Best of Edibles 
List Awards in two categories: Best Colorado Edible and Best Olive Oil. The product line has been expanded to include full 
spectrum CBD olive oils and will be focusing on distribution through a New York based distributor.  
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In addition, JuJu Royal has recently launched a series of new product lines including; Rasta Styxx, and line of vape products at an 
affordable price position; Julian Marley Private Reserve, an elevated, luxury line of vape products and prerolls; and the JuJu 
Royal CBD Collection, offering health and wellness vape products and edibles in exotic island flavors.  
 
La Vida Verde 
 
LVV believes that the best medicine starts with the food you eat and it takes pride in producing products for people who are 
search for a natural and healthy alternative for nurturing their bodies. All LVV’s products are vegan, organic, gluten-free, paleo 
friendly and low glycemic. LVV is a leader in the extraction field, being one of the first to incorporate full-spectrum testing in 
every product, testing for potency, terpenes, pesticides and residual solvents. Its concentrates are pharmaceutical grade and free of 
any pesticides, microbial contaminants, heavy metals or additives. LVV’s brands currently include Skunk Feather Cannabis™, 
wholesale flower, packaged flower, pre-rolls and blunts and Blank Brand™, unique chocolate bars, gummies, and capsules. LVV 
has been operating in California since 2015. 
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Market 
 
The Company’s target market is the counterculture, young adults over 21 years of age, college students, professionals, socially 
conscious artists, segments of Generation X (born between 1965 and 1976), Generation Y (born between 1977 and 1995) and the 
Baby Boomers (born between 1946 and 1964), the founders of the counterculture movement. Counterculture, young adults over 
21 years of age, college students, professionals, socially conscious artists: Management believes these individuals are dictating 
current trends, styles, and fads; they are internet savvy and have grown up with computer technology. The Company must be pro-
active, using research and data, to anticipate future market changes. The current market and trends in this particular industry are 
inspired by styles and music that originate from the 60’s generation, current styles, fashion trends, art movements, environmental 
issues and world politics. 
 
The cannabis industry continues to grow rapidly. The US midterm elections are now complete and represented another victory for 
the legal cannabis industry. Michigan, which is estimated to be the third largest US market, voted to allow full recreational use. 
Utah and Missouri additionally approved medical cannabis use. The total is now 33 medical use states and 10 full recreational 
states. The “green wave” is undeniable.  
 
Despite this momentum and growth, there remains a broad spread of expectations about how large the global and US cannabis 
market can become. The Company strongly believes that the US market potential is materially larger than many sources currently 
believe and that we will witness a number of upward revisions in the coming years.  
 
At the beginning of the year, ArcView Market Research released a report projecting global legal cannabis to grow to $57 billion 
by 2027 with North America representing growth from $9.2 billion in 2017 to $47.3 billion by 2027. New Frontier estimates US 
legal cannabis revenues as a $30.6 billion market by 2025 when likely new state entrants are included. A new set of high profile 
financial institutions are now weighing in as well. The venerable Bernstein Research released a report this week with a $70 billion 
US cannabis market estimate which they then walk back, as the total “errs on the optimistic because per capital spending in legal 
states is driven by tourism”. They then randomly adjust their estimate down 43% to $40 billion to account for this affect and, in 
their opinion, no evidence of any impact on alcohol consumption! The global investment bank Credit Suisse reportedly has set a 
$96 billion US target. Obviously there are numerous other sources as well. 
  
So in summary, we are seeing estimates of $30 billion to $100 billion for the US market over the coming decade. International 
Cannabrands believes these estimates may be understated by 100% and that the US market may exceed $100 billion to $150 
billion over the coming years. As cannabis becomes mainstream, it is entering non-traditional categories from beauty products to 
beverages to supplements. The basis for our more aggressive market perspective is that research analysts are taking a too narrow 
view on how cannabis use may disrupt consumer product categories and growth and will: (1) replace more traditional 
pharmaceutical categories, (2) cannibalize alcohol sales and (3) grow faster amongst less recognized consumer segments such as 
women, professionals and the pre-retirement/retired community. 
 
Cannabis research is under-developed, although this is rapidly being addressed through an increase in studies ranging from 
concussion protocols to oncology to Tourette’s syndrome to cardiac disease and others. There are a number of other large 
treatment categories that also may favor cannabis over traditional prescription alternatives. The University of Georgia 
conservatively estimates that cannabis may capture more than $4 billion of pharma sales in the interim term. 
 
The global pain management therapeutics market is expected to exceed $83 billion by 2024. In the US, there were reportedly over 
$10 billion worth of prescription opioids sold in 2017. Oxycontin, a drug under intense focus, exceeded $1 billion in sales alone. 
An early study by the Journal for American Medical Association (JAMA) noted material reductions in opioid overdoses in states 
with medical marijuana programs. Going forward, research on and increased chronic pain treatment protocols that consider a 
cannabis solution have significant potential to add to growth.  
 
The US “sleep market” is estimated to be worth $28.6 billion in 2017 and forecast to exceed $35 billion by 2023. The prescription 
brand giants – Ambien, Lunesta and Belsomra – are declining as they come off patent and are being replaced by cheaper generics 
and an explosion in over-the-counter solutions. The Center for Disease Control and Prevention estimates 4% of US adults use a 
prescription sleep aid with prescriptions topping $2.8 billion. IBISWorld estimates that in 2017, sleep labs generated $7.1 billion 
in revenue and is forecast to exceed $10 billion by 2020. Research to clinically establish the commonly held belief that THC/CBD 
and CBD only contributes to improved sleep are reportedly underway. 
  
In the US, estimates are that up to 40 million adults or 18% of the population suffers from an anxiety disorder. This total includes 
PTSD, OCD, panic disorders, social anxiety and phobias. The prescription drugs Paxil and Zoloft are the 7th and 8th most 
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prescribed medications in the US. Similar to the pain and sleep categories, there are reportedly a number of cannabis-related 
studies planned to establish its potential role to alleviate symptoms for specific syndromes and consumers.  
 
These large markets hold real opportunity to alleviate issues for consumers and generate associated revenues. A recent report by 
Chicago-based High Yield Insights found that cannabis consumers used 27% less over the counter pain medications and 22% less 
sleep aids.  
 
Second, the impact of how alcohol consumption moderates after the introduction of legal cannabis is still in its early stages. As 
context, the US alcohol market is estimated at $231 billion in 2017. Obviously the substantial investment by Constellation in 
Canopy Growth and reported options being considered by Diageo confirm that where “there’s smoke there may be fire”. The 
same High Yield report mentioned above noted cannabis consumers’ use 21% less alcohol spirits and 20% less beer versus states 
that have not legalized adult-use marijuana. A University of Connecticut study of medical marijuana counties in the years up to 
2015 experienced a 12% reduction in alcohol consumption. While data and studies emerge, there is a common sense basis that 
personal budget and recreational patterns may support the theory that cannabis use may reduce alcohol use.  
 
Third, new consumer segments are rapidly expanding. The recognition of CBD and THC/CBD as part of a “health and wellness” 
lifestyle is gaining traction. Millennials now exceed Baby Boomers as a percentage of the US population and more fully accept 
cannabis as a lifestyle alternative with 84% supporting legalization. As but one other example, BDS Analytics recently released a 
study revealing that 12% of consumers 50 years and older had used cannabis in the previous six months and that another 40% 
were considering it. The primary reasons were pain relief and to relax. Eighteen percent of respondents say they personally know 
someone who uses marijuana for medical purposes. “I’d say this is a tipping point for medical marijuana,” noted Alison Bryant, 
SVP of research at AARP in a recent article. “As more of a person’s acquaintances use it, it becomes more normalized.” 
 
In summary, the potential for traditional market disruption and a much greater role for cannabis in both recreational and medical 
categories support a dramatically higher US market size perspective. How fast growth happens and how high it goes will be 
revealed over the coming years. We recognize that change or non-change in US Federal regulations, new state adoptions, banking 
changes and other macro factors will have substantial impact on both size and speed of legal cannabis growth. However, we 
believe that ultimately the “green wave” that has been released in the US will wash over many obstacles and become a larger 
business than the current conservative estimates.  
 
The international legal cannabis market is expanding. Uruguay, Canada and Israel are leading the way, and a number of countries 
in Europe and Central and South America are not far behind. Management of the Company believes that opportunities are on the 
rise outside of the United States for strong brands. 
 
Competition 
 
We are in direct competition with every cannabis product in each of the major categories of the industry: flower, concentrates, 
edibles, CBD and merchandise including cannabis accessories and apparel. We are also competing with a handful of celebrity 
brands like Chong’s Choice, Leafs by Snoop, Willie’s Reserve, Marley Naturals and Whoopie & Maya.  
 
The Company believes it will benefit from the worldwide knowledge and awareness of the Julian Marley name and its 
relationship to cannabis use as well as having a live performing ambassador. Similarly, The Company believes it will benefit from 
the authentic resonance of the brands within the La Vida Verde family. LVV received its Annual Manufacturing License in 
California to April 2020.  The Company believes that the barrier to entry for temporary licenses in California is very low as 
only local authorization is required. The Company believes the bar for annual licenses is much higher as it requires intense 
disclosures, validation of processes, and multiple inspections by state officials. It is the Company’s expectation that many of 
the companies that received temporary licensing will not make it through to obtaining an annual license.   
 
The Company intends to focus initially on the California market where legalization has taken effect and the market is growing at 
the retail level. 
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Summary of Financial and Operating Results 
 
Three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company reported a total of $1,223,277 in revenue as compared to 
$45,117 for the three months ended March 31, 2018.  The Company acquired LVV on January 3, 2019 and is changing to 
tamper resistant packaging and this change should be finalized during 2019. 
 
Selected financial information for the Company for the indicated periods is provided below: 

2018 2017
Total sales 1,223,277$                  47,117$                        
Net loss (3,885,024)                   (520,802)
Basic and fully diluted loss per unit (0.02)                             (0.01)                             

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Total assets 13,002,155$                3,315,120$                  
Total liabilities 4,048,392                    1,244,374                    
Total stockholders' equity (deficit) 3,502,289                    2,070,746                    

Three Months Ended March 31,

 
The gross margin loss was ($637,560) for the three month period ended March 31, 2019 as compared to gross margin of 
$14,133 for the three month ended March 31, 2018. The decrease was the result of inventory write-downs due to new 
packaging requirements and obsolete inventory. 

Operating expenses for the three month period ended March 31, 2019 were $1,180,050 as compared to $334,629 for the 
three month ended March 31, 2018.  The increase of $845,421 was mainly as a result of the increased payroll, rent, investor 
relation, market maker and legal expenses of $691,655 at International Cannabrands and the closing of the acquisition of 
LVV on January 3, 2019. LVV incurred expenses of $153,766. 

The net loss per share for the three month period ended March 31, 2019 was $0.02 as compared to $0.01 for the three month 
period ended March 31, 2018. The increase is attributable to the increase in net loss as a result of higher operating expenses. 
The impact of the higher net loss was reduced by higher weighted average number of voting securities outstanding for the 
period. The weighted average number of voting shares outstanding for the three month period ended March 31, 2019, was 
257,341,328, as compared to 80,400,455 for the three month period ended March 31, 2018. 
 
QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

The following table highlights selected financial information for the three month period ended March 31, 2019. The 
Company expects its operating results to vary significantly from quarter to quarter and therefore they should not be relied 
upon to predict future performance.   

Qt 1 2019 Qt. 4 2018 Qt 3 2018 Qt 2 2018 Qt 1 2018 Q4 2017 Q3 2017 Q2 2017
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue 1,223,277                     (9,786)                6,090             64,863             45,417             32,734              26,365             57,033 
Interest income                       -                        -                        -                        -                  1,679                       -                (1,679)
Operating expenses         1,180,055            618,397           689,952           415,412           320,496           283,791            344,000           337,654 
Net loss from continuing operations       (3,885,024)       (1,424,618)      (1,682,578)         (756,458)         (520,802)         (235,061)          (342,730)         (334,976)
Net loss for the period       (3,885,024)       (1,424,618)      (1,682,578)         (756,458)         (520,802)         (235,061)          (342,730)         (334,976)
Loss per share - basic                 (0.02)                 (0.01)                (0.01)                (0.01)                (0.01)                (0.00)                 (0.03)                (0.04)
                       - diluted                 (0.02)                 (0.01)                (0.01)                (0.01)                (0.01)                (0.00)                 (0.03)                (0.04)  
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FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
Cash Flow for the three month period ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 

Net cash used in operating activities was $2,671,494 for the three month period ended March 31, 2019 as compared to 
$456,825 for the three month period ended March 31, 2018. During this period the Company the recorded a net loss of 
$3,567,320, and a net change in working capital of $248,893, offset by and non-cash expenses of $1,144,719. 

As of the period ended March 31, 2019, the Company has invested $925,704 in LVV. For the three month period ended 
March 31, 2019, net cash generated from financing activities was $3,072,993 as compared to $660,285 for the three month 
period ended March 31, 2018. The funds are being used to fund the Company’s growth and to maintain operations.  
 
For the three month period ended March 31, 2019, the Company had a net increase in cash of $828,793 as compared to a net 
increase of $203,460 for the for the three month period ended March 31, 2018.  As a result, as at March 31, 2019 and 
December 31, 2018, the Company had cash balances of $1,499,687 and $$670,894, respectively. 
 
Liquidity 

Since inception, the Company has relied primarily on private equity and debt financings to fund its operations, establish the 
initial sales, marketing and advertising strategies, protect intellectual property (such as trademarks) and establish the 
Company’s operations in Denver. The Company has had recurring operating losses since inception. The Company expects 
such losses to lessen moving forward into the foreseeable future as it continues to develop and commercialize its products.  
See “Risk Factors.” 

During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company reported a total of $1,223,277 in revenue as compared to 
$45,117 for the three months ended March 31, 2018.  The Company will likely need to continue to rely upon capital raising 
activities, such as private placement debt and equity financings, to fund its future operations. 

Selected financial information about the Company’s financial position as at the indicated dates is provided below:   

 

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Cash $                  1,499,687 $                     670,894 
Total assets 13,002,155                3,315,120                   
Notes payable 2,619,375                  929,551                       
Total liabilities 4,048,392                  1,244,374                   
Share capital, contributed surplus, and warrants reserve                   14,065,904                     9,067,041 
Deficit                 (10,563,615)                   (6,996,295)
Working capital                         374,249                         227,519  

The Company has attained an operating loss of $1,817,610 for the three month period ended March 31, 2019 (March 31, 
2018 - $320,496), has an accumulated deficit of $10,563,615 as at March 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018- $6,996,295) and 
negative cash flows from operations of $2,671,494 for the three month period March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018 - $456,825). 
 
During the three month period ended March 31, 2019, the Company was able to raise funds through equity financings of 
$3,211,765. The funds are being used to fund the Company’s growth and to maintain operations.  
 
The Company’s ability to access the debt and equity markets when required will depend upon factors beyond its control, 
such as economic and political conditions that may affect the capital markets generally.  Although the Company has been 
successful in raising funds to date, there can be no assurance that adequate funding will be available in the future. Should 
Management be unable to raise sufficient capital to fund its operations and growth there would be a material adverse effect 
on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations, and its ability to continue as a going concern.  
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Commitments 

As at March 31, 2019, the Company had material commitments for cash resources of approximately $3,248,346 for next year 
which are detailed below. The Company does not currently have sufficient working capital to meet these significant 
commitments and will be reliant on proceeds from financing activities, subleasing revenue, and revenue to fund these 
commitments. There is no guarantee the Company will be able to obtain the necessary financing or produce sufficient 
revenues to meet its financial commitments and ongoing operational costs. 
 
A breakdown of the Company’s liabilities and obligations as at March 31, 2019, is as follows:  

  March 31, 2019
Lease commitments $ 59,650                         
Royalty commitment $ 150,000                       
La Vida Verde, Inc. payments $ 700,000                       
Currrent portion of note payable $ 2,338,596                     

Lease Commitments 
 

On March 21, 2019, the Company renewed a lease agreement for office space in Denver, Colorado with 1045 Lincoln, LLC. 
The monthly payment is $1,200 per month. The lease expires March 31, 2020. 

 
On October 22, 2018, the Company executed a lease agreement for office space in Los Angeles, CA with WeWork 12655 
Jefferson Blvd Tenant LLC that expires on October 31, 2019. The monthly payment is $3,600 per month. 
 
On May 20, 2019, the Company cancelled its lease agreement with WeWork and executed a lease agreement for office space 
in Los Angeles, CA with WeWork 12655 Jefferson Blvd Tenant LLC that expires on May 20, 2020. The monthly payment is 
$5,950 per month. 

 
Royalty Commitment under License Agreement 

 
International Cannabrands holds an exclusive license, effective October 1, 2014, as amended and restated December 4, 2018, 
for the "JuJu Royal" trademark as well as the name, image, and personality rights of Julian "JuJu" Marley for products 
associated with the cannabis industry. The license agreement has an initial term of five years and is extended for an 
additional 10 years up to a maximum initial term of 20 years. Thereafter there is a continuing right of first refusal for up to 
40 years to match any offers being contemplated by the licensor. A onetime fee in the amount of $220,000 was paid to the 
Licensor upon execution of the License Agreement. Annual royalty fees are paid on a percentage of the net sales of licensed 
products and services subject to certain minimums. The royalty and sublicensing fees constitute the base royalty fees for the 
first 4 years of the agreement. In the fifth year of the agreement the base royalty agreement becomes a fixed fee. For each 
year after the fifth contract year, the base royalty fees to be paid by the Licensee to the Licensor shall be determined by 
qualified intellectual property business evaluation appraiser. On December 4, 2018, the Company agreed to pay base royalty 
payments of $50,000 in 2018 (paid), $75,000 on June 30, 2019, $75,000 on December 30, 2019 and $50,000 on June 30, 
2020. 
 
LVV Payments 

 
This represents amounts due to LVV related to acquisition. See Note 21 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the three months ended March 31, 2019. 

 
Note Repayment  
 
This note repayment relates to the note with a former director and officer. See Note 21 of the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for the three months ended March 31, 2019. 
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Legal Proceedings 

Occasionally, the Company may be a party to legal claims or proceedings of which the outcomes are subject to significant 
uncertainty. In accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the Company will assess 
the likelihood of an adverse judgment for any outstanding claim; as well as ranges of probable losses. See Note 21 of the 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the three months ended March 31, 2019. 

Management of Capital 

The Company seeks the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Company manages its capital structure and 
adjusts it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares when the time is appropriate.  

 
The Company monitors the return on capital, which is defined as stockholders’ equity in the amount of $3,502,289 as at 
March 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 – ($2,070,746). 

 
The Company will continually assess the adequacy of its capital structure and capacity and make adjustments within the 
context of the Company’s Strategy, economic conditions, and the risk characteristics of the business. 
 
The Company's objectives when managing capital are: to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern; and, to have 
sufficient capital to advance its business plan for the benefit of its shareholders. 

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.  

In order to maintain its capital structure, the Company is dependent on equity and/or debt funding and, when necessary, 
raises capital through the issuance of equity instruments, comprised of common shares, warrants, incentive stock options, 
and the issuance of debt instruments. The Company reviews its capital management methods and requirements on an 
ongoing basis and makes adjustments accordingly. 

The payment of cash dividends does not form part of the Company’s current capital management program and, to date, the 
Company has not declared any cash dividends on the Company’s common shares. 

Capital Transactions 

The Company seeks the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Company manages its capital structure and 
adjusts it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares when the time is appropriate.  

 
The Company monitors the return on capital, which is defined as stockholders’ equity in the amount of $3,502,289 as at 
March 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 – ($2,070,746). 

 
The Company will continually assess the adequacy of its capital structure and capacity and make adjustments within the 
context of the Company’s strategy, economic conditions, and the risk characteristics of the business. 
 
On September 21, 2017, the Company elected to be treated as a corporation for tax purposes and prepared and filed Articles of 
Merger in accordance with the Plan of Merger and Plan of Conversion contained in the Share Exchange Agreement, whereby 
International Cannabrands Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of GEA merged into DropLeaf.  DropLeaf then prepared and filed 
Articles of Conversion whereby it converted from a limited liability company into a corporation concurrent with the merger). 

Disclosure of Outstanding Share Data 
 
The Company had 270,276,465 common shares outstanding at March 31, 2019. Each common shareholder is entitled to one 
vote for each common share held.  
 
The Company has stock option grants to purchase 24,505,570 common shares at an average exercise price of $0.118 per 
share The Company expensed $221,477 and $81,477 during the three month period ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, 
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respectively, or $0.00 and $0.00 per share, respectively. The Company has $476,869 of remaining costs to be expensed and 
the remaining life of the stock option grants is approximately 4.10 years. 
 
The Company has warrants to purchase 149,470,260 common shares to purchase common shares at an average exercise price 
of $0.108 per share. The Company expensed $272,573 and $0 during the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018. 
 
The Company had the following shares and securities convertible into shares as of March 31, 2019: 
 

March 31, 
2019

Common shares 270,276,465
Stock options, convertible into common shares 24,505,570
Warrants to purchase common shares 147,470,260
Common Shares  - fully diluted 442,252,295  
 
Due from former officer and director 

 
On March 16, 2017, a former officer and director was issued 536,522 shares in exchange for a $32,000 note receivable. The 
note is due on March 15, 2020 with accrued interest of $1,310 at March 31, 2019.  
  
Due to former officer and director 

 
At March 31, 2019, the total loans from a former officer and director were as follows: 
 
  March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Note payable $ 761,600                   $ 911,600                   
Accrued interest- note payable 29,179                     17,951                     

Total note payable $ 790,779                   $ 929,551                    
 
The loan represents advances from a former officer and director with no repayment terms. The advances accrue simple 
interest at a rate of 2% per annum starting January 1, 2015. On September 4, 2018, the Company entered into a Promissory 
Note with the former officer and director for $941,600. The Note is due September 20, 2020 and provides for monthly 
payments of $26,155 plus interest. Interest accrues at 6% from September 4, 2018. 

 
Due to LVV Stockholders  

 
  March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Note payable $ 1,750,000                $ -                                
Accrued interest- note payable 23,596                     -                                

Total note payable $ 1,773,596                $ -                                 
 

On January 3, 2019, the Company issued Promissory Notes and Pledge Agreements to the stockholders off LVV totalling 
$2,000,000. The Notes are due on October 31, 2019 and provide for interest at 5%. The payments are collateralized by shares 
of LVV common stock. The Company paid $250,000 under the Notes during the three months ended March 31, 2019. The 
Company accrued $23,596 as at March 31, 2019.  
 
Certain Relationships              

On July 16, 2018, the Company entered into agreements with Messrs. Gormley and Pomroy regarding the services to be 
provided by them. The parties were granted 12,292,969 options and 4,917,188 options, respectively, under the Company’s 
stock option plan and 31,961,720 and 39,337,502 performance warrants, respectively. The options are exercisable into 
common shares at a strike price of $0.07 per share for 5 years. The performance warrants are exercisable into common shares 
at a strike price of $0.07 for a period of five years with 50% of the warrants being immediately vested and 50% of the 
warrants vested over a one year period or immediately upon closing of a Significant Acquisition, as defined in National 
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Instrument 51-102 Continuous Disclosure Obligations. The acquisition of LVV on January 3, 2019 triggered the vesting of 
the second 50% of the warrants issued. 
 
Investment in Riotus SODO LLC 

 
Effective August 29, 2018, the Company purchased 500,000 Class A units of Riotus SODO LLC at $1.00 for $500,000 in 
total. This represented a 20.6% ownership position but the Company does not have a position of significant influence.  
Riotus SODO provides its investors with an opportunity to earn profits on facilities and operations expansion in the cannabis 
industry. Riotus SODO is focused on the expansion/development of an 8,000 ft2 cultivation facility in Seattle, WA. The 
operator of the facility is Solstice Holdings Inc. (“Solstice”), a leading brand and distribution company in Washington State. 
Riotus SODO is partnered with Solstice Holdings LLC, a leading branding and distribution company in the State of 
Washington. If Solstice is able to realize the expected benefits from the Expansion Project and the Company’s investment in 
Riotus SODO performs to plan, the Company should receive cash distributions of approximately $25,000 a month starting in 
the second quarter of 2019 for 21 months, and then approximately $10,000 a month thereafter for approximately 4 years. 
There are no costs associated with the distributions or offsetting amounts expected to be deducted. In accordance with IFRS 
11 the Company has accounted for its investment in Riotus SODO at cost. Mr. Pomroy is the managing partner of Riotus 
SODO. 
 
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 
The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through April 30, 2019, which is the date the financials were available to 
be issued. Management has determined that, except as set out below, no events or transactions occurring after the balance 
sheet date substantially affects the amounts, presentation, and disclosure of the accompanying financial statements. 
 
On May 2, 2019, the Company issued On May 2, 2019, the Company announced the appointment of Corey Kite as Vice 
President of Sales (Northern California), Bethany Stiles as Vice President of Sales (Southern California), and Alison Bryce 
as Chief Operating Officer. 
 
On May 7, 2019, the Company announced that LVV had signed a major distribution arrangement with Nabis - one of 
California’s largest Type 11 distributors with state-wide reach to over 90% of the retailers in California. 
 
During May, the Company raised an aggregate of Cdn$784,531 through a series of private placements and in connection 
with the exercise of warrants. The Company issued an aggregate of 5,079,365 common shares at a price of $0.07875 per 
share, 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.08 and an aggregate of 3,867,064 units at a price of $0.07875 consisting of 
3,867,064 common shares and 3,768,253 share purchase warrants. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common 
share at a price of $0.13125 per share for a period of 2 years, subject to the ability of the Company to accelerate the expiry 
date to 30 days should the common shares trade at $0.2625 for 10 consecutive trading days following expiry of the hold 
period. 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or 
future effect on the results of operations or financial condition of the Company. 

INVESTOR RELATIONS 

Investor relations were performed by the Company for the three month period ended March 31, 2019. 

SEGMENTED INFORMATION 

The management of the Company considers the business to have a single operating segment: the continued development and 
marketing of its branding platform and the sale of its products. There were no changes in the reportable segments during the 
three month period ended March 31, 2019.  
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 

Preparing the financial statements in conformity with applicable accounting standards requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. These estimates, 
judgments and assumptions are evaluated on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on historical experience and on 
various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable at that time, the results of which form the basis for making 
judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results 
may differ materially from those estimates. 
 
By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty, and changes in these estimates may affect the 
audited financial statements of future periods. Estimates and accounting judgments are based on historical experience, 
current trends and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
The accounting policies that reflect our more significant estimates, judgments and assumptions and which we believe are the 
most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating reported financial results are discussed below. 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 

Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue is derived from both the sale of products. Revenue from the sale of products is considered realized when the 
products have been provided to the customer, the work has been accepted by the customer and collectability is reasonably 
assured. Furthermore, if an actual measurement of revenue cannot be determined, the Company defers all revenue 
recognition until such time that an actual measurement can be determined. If during the course of a contract management 
determines that losses are expected to be incurred, such costs are charged to operations in the period such losses are 
determined. Revenues are deferred when cash has been received from the customer but the revenue has not been earned. 
  
See the Notes to the Financial Statements for the three month period ended March 31, 2019, for a complete summary of our 
significant accounting policies. 
 
CAUTION REGARDING BUSINESS 

There are a number of risks associated with the business of the Company.  See section entitled “Risk Factors” below for a 
detailed list of all relevant risk factors. 

Canadian Companies with U.S. Marijuana-Related Assets 

In accordance with the Canadian Securities Administrators Staff Notice 51-352 (Revised) dated February 8, 2018 – Issuers 
with U.S. Marijuana-Related Activities (“CSA Notice 51-352”), below is a brief summary of the Company’s cannabis 
activity in the United States and a discussion of the U.S. regulatory regime. In accordance with CSA Notice 51-352, the 
Company will evaluate, monitor, and reassess this disclosure and any related risks on an ongoing basis and will supplement, 
amend and communicate to investors in public filings, the event of government policy changes or the introduction of new or 
amended guidance, laws or regulations regarding cannabis.  

Summary of the Company’s United States Cannabis Activity 

As of March 31, 2019, the Company had direct involvement in U.S. cannabis-related activities through its 51% owned 
subsidiary LVV, a licensed manufacturer and distributor of flower, cannabis-infused oils, tinctures and edibles in California. 

Previously, the Company had only ancillary involvement in the U.S. cannabis industry through its agreements with third 
party licensed cultivators (to grow four signature strains), oil extractors, vape manufacturers, edible manufacturers and 
merchandise companies to produce and distribute products bearing the trademark Julian Marley JuJu Royal™, in the U.S. 
where cannabis has been legalized at the state level, as well as products containing cannabidiol (CBD) (a non-psychoactive 
chemical compound found in cannabis) in the U.S. and internationally; as well as the Company has entered into a number of 
distribution/license agreements in the U.S. and elsewhere.  
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The Company takes commercially reasonable steps to ensure that LVV and all third parties that provide services to the 
Company are in compliance with applicable licensing requirements and the regulatory framework enacted by the applicable 
U.S. State. The Company currently derives all of its revenue from U.S. cannabis-related activities and so 100% of its balance 
sheet and operating statement are exposed to U.S. cannabis related activities.  As a result of Company’s direct involvement 
in manufacture and distribution of LVV and its products, the Company is subject to CSA Notice 51-352 and accordingly 
provides the following disclosure. 

United States Federal Overview 

Introduction 

In the U.S., 33 states, the District of Columbia and the U.S. territories of Guam and Puerto Rico, allow the use of medical 
cannabis. Voters in ten states have approved the legal sale and adult-use of recreational cannabis. The District of Columbia 
and Vermont have legalized adult-use of recreational cannabis but do not allow the sale of recreational cannabis.  

At the federal level, however, cannabis, other than hemp  (i.e., cannabis with less than 0.3% THC on a dry weight basis) 
currently remains a Schedule I controlled substance under the Federal Controlled Substances Act of 1970 (“Federal CSA”). 
Under U.S. federal law, a Schedule I drug or substance has a high potential for abuse, no accepted medical use in the United 
States, and a lack of accepted safety for the use of the drug under medical supervision. As such, even in those states in which 
cannabis is legalized under state law, the manufacture, importation, possession, use or distribution of cannabis remains 
illegal under U.S. federal law. This has created a dichotomy between state and federal law, whereby many states have elected 
to regulate and remove state-level penalties regarding a substance which is still illegal at the federal level. 

Although federally illegal, the U.S. federal government’s approach to enforcement of such laws has, at least until recently, 
trended toward non-enforcement. On August 29, 2013, the U.S. Department of Justice (“U.S. DOJ”) issued a memorandum 
known as the “2013 Cole Memorandum” to all U.S. attorneys’ offices (“U.S. Attorneys”). The 2013 Cole Memorandum 
generally directed U.S. Attorneys not to prioritize the enforcement of federal cannabis laws against individuals and 
businesses that rigorously comply with state regulatory provisions in states with strictly-regulated medical or adult-use 
cannabis programs. The 2013 Cole Memorandum, while not legally binding, assisted in managing the tension between state 
and federal laws concerning state-regulated cannabis businesses.   

Rescission of the 2013 Cole Memorandum  

On January 4, 2018, U.S. Attorney General Jeff Sessions rescinded the 2013 Cole Memorandum, replacing it with the 
“Sessions Memorandum”. The stated rationale of the U.S. DOJ in doing so was that the 2013 Cole Memorandum was 
“unnecessary” due to existing general enforcement guidance adopted in the 1980s, as set forth in the U.S. Attorneys’ Manual 
(the “USAM”). The USAM enforcement priorities, like those of the 2013 Cole Memorandum, are also based on the federal 
government’s limited resources, and include “law enforcement priorities set by the Attorney General”, the “seriousness” of 
the alleged crimes, the “deterrent effect of criminal prosecution” and “the cumulative impact of particular crimes on the 
community”. 

While the Sessions Memorandum is not law itself and therefore does not change U.S. federal law, it does add to the 
uncertainty of U.S. federal enforcement of the Federal CSA in states where cannabis is legal under state law.  The Sessions 
Memorandum gives U.S. Attorneys discretion in deciding whether to prosecute cannabis-related activities, including in such 
states that have legalized cannabis. While the Sessions Memorandum emphasized that cannabis is a Schedule I controlled 
substance and reiterated the statutory view that cannabis is a “dangerous drug and marijuana activity is a serious crime”, it 
does not otherwise confirm for U.S. Attorneys that prosecution of cannabis-related offenses is now a U.S. DOJ priority.  

On February 14, 2019, William Barr was confirmed by the U.S. Senate as the next Attorney General. On January 15, 2019, 
during his confirmation hearing, Mr. Barr indicated that he personally believes cannabis should remain illegal but he also 
stated that if confirmed, he would not “go after companies that have relied on the 2013 Cole Memorandum and that his 
approach with regard to federal cannabis law enforcement would be “not to upset settled expectations.” Mr. Barr doubled 
down on these statements in response to written questions from senators writing “[a]s discussed at my hearing, I do not 
intend to go after parties who have complied with state law in reliance on the 2013 Cole Memorandum.” Mr. Barr did not 
commit to formally replacing the 2013 Cole Memorandum in such responses writing “I have not closely considered or 
determined whether further administrative guidance would be appropriate following the 2013 Cole Memorandum and the 
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[Sessions Memorandum], or what such guidance might look like … If confirmed, I will give the matter careful 
consideration.” 

Mr. Barr’s approach to cannabis federal law enforcement may prove less aggressive than Attorney General Session’s 
get‐tough on cannabis stance and could reduce the uncertainty stemming from Attorney General Session’s tenure. However, 
Mr. Barr has made it clear that he does not support federal legalization and until he begins implementing these policies, 
considerable uncertainty remains.  

Regardless, marijuana remains a Schedule I controlled substance at the federal level, and neither the 2013 Cole 
Memorandum nor its rescission has altered that fact. The federal government of the United States has always reserved the 
right to enforce federal law in regard to the sale and disbursement of medical or recreational marijuana, even if state law 
sanctioned such sale and disbursement. From a purely legal perspective, the criminal risk today remains identical to the risk 
on January 3, 2018. It is unclear whether the risk of enforcement has been altered by former Attorney General Sessions or 
will be altered by the current Attorney General William Barr. 

Anti-Money Laundering Laws, Banking Regulations and Bankruptcy Protection 

Under U.S. federal law, it may be a violation of federal money laundering statutes for financial institutions to take any 
proceeds from the sale of cannabis or any other Schedule I controlled substance under the Federal CSA. Canadian banks are 
likewise hesitant to deal with cannabis companies due to the uncertain legal and regulatory framework of the industry. Banks 
and other financial institutions, particularly those that are federally chartered in the U.S., could be prosecuted and possibly 
convicted of money laundering for providing services to businesses with operations or a connection to cannabis. Despite 
these laws, the U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN”) issued a 
memorandum on February 14, 2014 (the “FinCEN Memorandum”) outlining the pathways for financial institutions to bank 
state-sanctioned cannabis businesses in compliance with federal enforcement priorities. The FinCEN Memorandum echoed 
the enforcement priorities of the 2013 Cole Memorandum. Under these guidelines, financial institutions must submit a 
Suspicious Activity Report (“SAR”) in connection with all cannabis-related banking activities by any client of such financial 
institution, in accordance with federal money laundering laws. These cannabis-related SARs are divided into three 
categories, being marijuana limited, marijuana priority and marijuana terminated, which are based on the financial 
institution’s belief that the business in question follows state law, is operating outside of compliance with state law or where 
the banking relationship has been terminated, respectively.  

On the same day the FinCEN Memorandum was published, the U.S. DOJ issued a memorandum (the “2014 Cole 
Memorandum”) directing prosecutors to apply the enforcement priorities of the 2013 Cole Memorandum in determining 
whether to charge individuals or institutions with crimes related to financial transactions involving the proceeds of cannabis-
related conduct. The 2014 Cole Memorandum was also rescinded as of January 4, 2018, along with the 2013 Cole 
Memorandum, removing guidance that enforcement of applicable financial crimes against state-compliant actors was not a 
U.S. DOJ priority. 

However, U.S. Attorney General Jeff Sessions’ rescission of the 2013 Cole Memorandum and the 2014 Cole Memorandum 
has not affected the status of the FinCEN Memorandum, nor has the Department of the Treasury given any indication that it 
intends to rescind the FinCEN Memorandum itself. Though it was originally intended for the 2014 Cole Memorandum and 
the FinCEN Memorandum to work in tandem, the FinCEN Memorandum appears to be a standalone document which 
explicitly lists the eight enforcement priorities originally cited in the 2013 Cole Memorandum. As such, the FinCEN 
Memorandum remains intact.  

While the FinCEN Memorandum has not been rescinded by the U.S. DOJ at this time, it remains unclear whether the current 
administration will follow its guidelines. Overall, the U.S. DOJ continues to have the right and power to prosecute crimes 
committed by banks and financial institutions, such as money laundering and violations of the Bank Secrecy Act, that occur 
in any state, including in states that have legalized the applicable conduct, and the U.S. DOJ’s current enforcement priorities 
could change for any number of reasons, including a change in the opinions of the President of the United States or the U.S. 
Attorney General. A change in the U.S. DOJ’s enforcement priorities could result in the U.S. DOJ prosecuting banks and 
financial institutions for crimes that previously were not prosecuted. 

Banks often refuse to provide banking services to businesses involved in the cannabis industry due to the present state of the 
laws and regulations governing financial institutions in the United States. The lack of banking and financial services presents 
unique and significant challenges to businesses operating in and ancillary to the cannabis industry. The potential lack of a 
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secure place in which to deposit and store cash, the inability to pay creditors through the issuance of checks and the inability 
to secure traditional forms of operational financing, such as lines of credit, are some of the many challenges presented by the 
lack of traditional banking and financial services available to businesses operating in or ancillary to the cannabis industry. 

Additionally, the Company does not have protection under U.S. bankruptcy laws. U.S. bankruptcy laws were adopted to 
protect financially troubled businesses and to provide for orderly distributions to business creditors. All bankruptcy cases are 
handled in U.S. federal courts, and the U.S. DOJ has stated that it is the U.S. Trustee Program’s (“USTP”) position that no 
assets associated with the cannabis industry can be liquidated or restricted following bankruptcy without violating the 
Federal CSA. In addition, the Director of the USTP recently issued a letter to 1,100 trustees who administer bankruptcy cases 
urging the trustees to monitor and report to the U.S. DOJ cannabis companies looking to declare bankruptcy. 

If any of the Company’s operations, or any proceeds thereof, any dividends or distributions therefrom, or any profits or 
revenues accruing from such operations in the United States are found to be in violation of money laundering legislation or 
otherwise, such transactions may be viewed as proceeds of crime under one or more of the statutes noted above or any other 
applicable legislation. This could restrict or otherwise jeopardize the ability of the Company to declare or pay dividends and 
could affect other distributions, including the Company’s ability to transfer funds into Canada. Furthermore, while the 
Company has no current intentions to declare or pay dividends in the foreseeable future, if a determination was made that the 
Company’s proceeds from operations (or any future operations or investments in the United States) could reasonably be 
shown to constitute proceeds of crime, the Company may decide, or be required, to suspend declaring or paying dividends 
without advance notice and for an indefinite period of time. 

Enforcement of U.S. Federal Laws 

Enforcement of U.S. federal law is a significant risk to cannabis businesses operating in the United States. The rescission of 
the 2013 Cole Memorandum increased the uncertainty and risk associated with the enforcement of U.S. federal laws 
regarding the production, manufacture, processing, possession, distribution, sale and use of cannabis. There is no certainty as 
to how the U.S. DOJ, the U.S. Federal Bureau of Investigation and other government agencies will handle cannabis matters 
now that the 2013Cole Memorandum is no longer in effect.  

There can be no assurance that the U.S. federal government will not seek to prosecute cases involving cannabis businesses, 
notwithstanding compliance with state law. Any such proceedings could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
business, revenues, operating results and financial condition, as well as the Company’s reputation and ability to raise capital.  

Further, violations of any U.S. federal laws and regulations could result in significant fines, penalties, administrative 
sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by either the U.S. federal government or 
private citizens, or criminal charges, including, but not limited to, disgorgement of profits, cessation of business activities or 
divestiture. This could have a material adverse effect on the Company, including its reputation and ability to conduct 
business, its ability to list its securities on stock exchanges, its financial position, its operating results, its profitability or 
liquidity or the value of its securities. In addition, the time of management and advisors of the Company and resources that 
would be needed for the investigation of any such matters or their final resolution could be substantial. 

U.S. Enforcement Proceedings 

Although the 2013 Cole Memorandum and 2014 Cole Memorandum have been rescinded, one legislative safeguard for the 
medical cannabis industry remains in place. U.S. Congress has used a rider provision (the “Rider Provision”) in the fiscal 
year 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 Consolidated Appropriations Acts to prevent the U.S. federal government from using 
congressionally appropriated funds to enforce federal cannabis laws against regulated cannabis actors operating in 
compliance with state and local law. The Rider Provision shall remain in effect until the end of the FY 2019 (i.e., September 
30, 2019). At such time, there are several possibilities: Congress could pass a FY 2020 budget, in which case it could either 
include the Rider Provision (or a similar provision), or Congress could fail to pass any kind of a budget, in which case a 
government shutdown would result and the protections of the Rider Provision would end. As the Rider Provision protects 
only state medical cannabis actors, there can be no assurance that U.S. federal prosecutors will not use U.S. DOJ funds to 
interfere with state adult-use cannabis actors. 

California 
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In 1996, California voters approved Proposition 215 (the “Compassionate Use Act”), allowing physicians to recommend 
cannabis for an inclusive set of qualifying conditions including chronic pain. The law established a not-for-profit 
patient/caregiver system, but there was no state licensing authority to oversee the businesses that emerged as a result of the 
system. In September of 2015, the California legislature passed three bills, collectively known as the “Medical Marijuana 
Regulation and Safety Act”. In 2016, California voters passed “The Adult Use of Marijuana Act”, which legalized adult-use 
cannabis for adults 21 years of age and older and created a licensing system for commercial cannabis businesses. On June 27, 
2017, Governor Brown signed SB-94 into law. SB-94 combined California’s medicinal and adult-use cannabis regulatory 
frameworks into one licensing structure under the Medicinal and Adult-Use of Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act 
(“MAUCRSA”). 

Pursuant to MAUCRSA: (1) CalCannabis, a division of the California Department of Food and Agriculture, issued licenses 
to cannabis cultivators; (2) the Manufactured Cannabis Safety Branch issues licenses to cannabis manufacturers; and (3) the 
California Department of Consumer Affairs, via its agency the CBCC, issues licenses to cannabis distributors, testing 
laboratories, retailers and micro-businesses. These agencies also oversee the various aspects of implementing and 
maintaining California’s cannabis landscape, including the statewide track and trace system. All three agencies released their 
emergency rulemakings at the end of 2017 and updated them with revisions in June 2018 (the “Readopted Emergency 
Regulations”). The three agencies also released the first draft of their permanent rulemakings in July 2018 and the second 
draft of their permanent rulemakings in October 2018, which are currently undergoing the rulemaking process (the 
“Proposed Non-Emergency Regulations”). The Readopted Emergency Regulations will remain in effect until the Proposed 
Non-Emergency Regulations are formally completed. All three agencies began issuing temporary licenses in January 2018 
and are currently evaluating annual license applications. A temporary license is a conditional license that allows a business to 
engage in commercial cannabis activity for a period of 120 days and may be given 90-day extensions if the licensee has 
applied for an annual license with the respective licensing authority. 

To operate legally under state law, cannabis operators must obtain a state license and local approval. Local authorization is a 
prerequisite to obtaining state licensure from all three state licensing agencies, and local governments are permitted to 
prohibit or otherwise regulate the types and number of cannabis businesses allowed in their locality. California has not set a 
limit on the number of state licenses an entity may hold, unlike other states that have restricted how many cannabis licenses 
an entity may hold in total or for various types of cannabis activity. Although vertical integration across multiple license 
types is allowed under MAUCRSA, testing laboratory licensees may not hold any other licenses aside from a laboratory 
license. There are also no residency requirements for ownership under MAUCRSA. 

License types are designated into two classes: Type M (medical) or Type A (adult-use). There are 20 types of licenses, and a 
single entity may possess both Type M and Type A licenses. Licensees must conduct their commercial cannabis activity 
within a single premises, which must be contiguous. Although multiple premises are allowed on a given parcel, each 
premises must be sufficiently separate from any other premises, i.e., having separate entrances and exits and no shared 
common areas. Importantly, licensees may not sublet any portion of their licensed premises, and therefore, a licensee cannot 
lease a multi-unit building and sublease one of the units to an affiliated licensee. 

The Company is directly involved in the manufacturing of cannabis in California as a result of the acquisition of LVV on 
January 3, 2019. LVV has represented to the Company that its business was conducted in compliance with the regulatory 
framework enacted by the State of California. LVV is in compliance with all applicable California laws, regulations, and 
guidelines. 

Local Licensure, Zoning and Land Use Requirements 

To obtain a state license, cannabis operators must first obtain local authorization, which is a prerequisite to obtaining state 
licensure. All three state regulatory agencies require confirmation from the applicable locality that an applicant is in 
compliance with local requirements and has either been granted authorization to, upon state licensure, continue previous 
cannabis activities or commence cannabis operations. One of the basic aspects of obtaining local authorization is compliance 
with all local zoning and land use requirements. Local governments are permitted to prohibit or otherwise regulate the types 
and number of cannabis businesses allowed in their locality. Some localities have limited the number of authorizations an 
entity may hold in total or for various types of cannabis activity. Others have tiered the authorization process, granting the 
initial rounds of local authorization to applicants that previously conducted cannabis activity pursuant to the Compassionate 
Use Act or those that meet the locality’s definition of social equity. Both TOP and Sonoma Pac were granted full zoning and 
use permits by Sonoma County on March 14, 2019. 
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Record-Keeping and Continuous Reporting Requirements 

California’s state license application process additionally requires comprehensive criminal history, regulatory history and 
personal disclosures for all owners. Any criminal convictions or civil penalties or judgments occurring after licensure must 
promptly be reported to the regulatory agency from which the licensee holds a license. State licenses must be renewed 
annually. Disclosure requirements for local authorization may vary, but generally tend to mirror the State of California’s 
requirements. Licensees must also keep detailed records pertaining to various aspects of the business for up to seven years. 
Such records must be easily accessible by the regulatory agency from which the licensee holds a license. Additionally, 
licensees must record all business transactions, which must be uploaded to the statewide traceability system, once the system 
has been implemented by CalCannabis. 

Operating Procedure Requirements 

Applicants must submit standard operating procedures describing how the operator will, among other requirements, secure 
the facility, manage inventory, comply with California’s seed-to-sale tracking requirements, dispense cannabis, and handle 
waste, as applicable to the license sought. Once the standard operating procedures are determined compliant and approved by 
the applicable state regulatory agency, the licensee is required to abide by the processes described and seek regulatory 
agency approval before any changes to such procedures may be made. Licensees are additionally required to train their 
employees on compliant operations and are only permitted to transact with other legal and licensed businesses. 

Site Visits & Inspections 

LVV will not be able to obtain or maintain state licensure, and thus engage in commercial cannabis activities in the State of 
California, without satisfying and maintaining compliance with state and local law. As a condition of state licensure, 
operators must consent to random and unannounced inspections of the commercial cannabis facility enacted similar 
standards for inspections, and the state has already commenced site-visits and compliance inspections for operators who have 
received state temporary or annual licensure. 

Compliance Procedures 

LVV has retained industry experts in California cannabis law, as local outside counsel to oversee and monitor compliance 
with U.S. state law on an ongoing basis. These experts in the field keep LVV fully informed of regulatory changes and 
recommend standard operating procedures to facilitate the implementation and maintenance of compliant operations, 
required tracking and license reporting. LVV will continue to work closely with the advisors to develop and improve its 
internal compliance program and will defer to their legal opinions and risk mitigation guidance regarding California’s 
complex regulatory framework. The internal compliance program, including the update of operational procedures and use of 
checklists, requires continued monitoring by managers and executives of the Company to ensure all operations conform with 
legally-compliant standard operating procedures. The Company expects LVV to report and disclose all instances of non-
compliance, regulatory, administrative, or legal proceedings that may be initiated against them. LVV has been in compliance 
with the regulatory requirements as they have unfolded throughout 2018 and 2019. 

RISK FACTORS 

Management of the Company consider the risks set forth below to be the most significant, but do not consider them to be all 
of the risks associated with an investment in securities the Company. If any of these risks materialize into actual events or 
circumstances or other possible additional risks and uncertainties of which Management is currently unaware or which they 
consider not to be material in connection with the Company’s business, actually occur, the Company’s assets, liabilities, 
financial condition, results of operations (including future results of operations), business and business prospects, are likely 
to be materially and adversely affected. In such circumstances, the price of the Company’s securities could decline and 
investors may lose all or part of their investment. 

SPECIFIC RISKS RELATED TO THE CANNABIS INDUSTRY 

Risks Related to the United States Statutory and Regulatory Framework 
 
U.S. cannabis operations are illegal under U.S. federal law and the enforcement of relevant laws is a significant risk. 
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As a result of the conflicting views between state legislatures and the U.S. federal government regarding the legality of 
cannabis, cannabis-related businesses in the United States are subject to inconsistent legislation, regulation and enforcement.  
Unless and until the United States Congress amends the Federal CSA with respect to cannabis or the Drug Enforcement 
Agency reschedules or de-schedules cannabis (and there can be no assurance as to the timing or scope of any such potential 
amendments), there is a risk that U.S. federal authorities may enforce current U.S. federal law, which would adversely affect 
the Company.  As a result of the inconsistency between state and federal law, there are a number of risks associated with the 
Company’s existing and proposed operations in the United States.  
 
Laws will continue to change rapidly for the foreseeable future and local laws and ordinances could restrict the Company’s 
business operations. 
 
Local, state and federal laws and enforcement policies concerning cannabis-related conduct are changing rapidly and will 
continue to do so for the foreseeable future.  There can be no assurance that existing state laws that legalize and regulate the 
production, sale and use of cannabis will not be repealed, amended or overturned.  In addition, local governments have the 
ability to limit, restrict and ban cannabis-related businesses from operating within their jurisdictions.  Land use, zoning, local 
ordinances, and similar laws could be adopted or changed in a manner that makes it extremely difficult or impossible to 
transact business in certain jurisdictions.  These potential changes in state and local laws are unpredictable and could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s business.   
 
The Company may be subject to heightened scrutiny by Canadian regulatory authorities. 
 
For the reasons set forth herein, the Company’s existing investments and operations in the United States, and any future 
investments and operations, may become the subject of heightened scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges, third party 
service providers, financial institutions, depositories and other authorities in Canada and the U.S. As a result, the Company 
may be subject to significant direct and indirect interaction with public officials. There can be no assurance that this 
heightened scrutiny will not in turn lead to the imposition of certain restrictions on the Company’s ability to operate in the 
U.S., Canada and other jurisdictions.  
 
On February 8, 2018, following discussions with the Canadian Securities Administrators and recognized Canadian securities 
exchanges, the TMX Group announced the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with Aequitas NEO 
Exchange Inc., the CSE, the Toronto Stock Exchange and the TSX Venture Exchange. The MOU outlines the parties’ 
understanding of Canada’s regulatory framework applicable to the rules, procedures and regulatory oversight of the 
exchanges and the Canadian Depository for Securities (“CDS”) as it relates to issuers with cannabis-related activities in the 
United States. The MOU confirms, with respect to the clearing of listed securities, that CDS relies on the stock exchanges to 
review the conduct of listed issuers. As a result, there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers with cannabis-
related activities in the United States. However, there can be no guarantee that this approach to regulation will continue in 
the future. If such a ban were to be implemented at a time when the Company’s common shares are listed on a Canadian 
stock exchange, it would have a material adverse effect on the ability of holders of the Company’s common shares to make 
and settle trades. In particular, the Company’s common shares would become highly illiquid until an alternative was 
implemented, and investors would have no ability to effect a trade of the Company’s common shares through the facilities of 
the applicable stock exchange. 
 
Banking regulations in the cannabis industry may create significant challenges to the Company’s operations. 
 
Because banks in the U.S. often refuse to provide banking services to businesses involved in the cannabis industry due to the 
present state of the laws and regulations governing financial institutions, the Company faces unique and significant 
challenges in operating its business. Canadian banks are likewise hesitant to deal with cannabis companies due to the 
uncertain legal and regulatory framework of the industry. Therefore, the Company may face a potential lack of a secure place 
in which to deposit and store cash, the inability to pay creditors through the issuance of checks and the inability to secure 
traditional forms of operational financing, such as lines of credit. 
 
The Company’s investments in the United States may be subject to applicable U.S. anti-money laundering laws and 
regulations. 
 
Under U.S. federal law, it may be a violation of money laundering statutes for financial institutions to take any proceeds 
from the sale of cannabis or any other Schedule I controlled substance under the Federal CSA. Banks and other financial 
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institutions, particularly those that are federally chartered in the United States, could be prosecuted and possibly convicted of 
money laundering for providing services to businesses with operations or a connection to cannabis. Therefore, investments 
held in U.S. banks are subject to seizure by the U.S. federal government.  
 
If any of the Company’s operations, or any proceeds thereof, any dividends or distributions therefrom, or any profits or 
revenues accruing from such operations in the United States were found to be in violation of money laundering legislation or 
otherwise, such transactions may be viewed as proceeds of crime. This could restrict or otherwise jeopardize the ability of 
the Company to declare or pay dividends and could affect other distributions, including the Company’s ability to transfer 
such funds into Canada. Furthermore, while the Company has no current intentions to declare or pay dividends in the 
foreseeable future, in the event that a determination was made that the Company’s proceeds from operations (or any future 
operations or investments in the United States) could reasonably be shown to constitute proceeds of crime, the Company 
may decide, or be required, to suspend declaring or paying dividends without advance notice and for an indefinite period of 
time. 
 
Third party service providers could suspend or withdraw services as a result of our cannabis business. 
 
As a result of any adverse change to the approach in enforcement of U.S. cannabis laws, adverse regulatory or political 
change, additional scrutiny by regulatory authorities, adverse changes in public perception in respect of the consumption of 
cannabis or otherwise, third party service providers to the Company could suspend or withdraw their services, which may 
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, revenues, operating results, financial condition or prospects. 
 
Courts may not enforce the Company’s contracts. 
 
It is a fundamental principle of law that a contract will not be enforced if it involves a violation of law or public policy.  
Because cannabis remains illegal in the United States at the federal level, judges in multiple U.S. states have on a number of 
occasions refused to enforce contracts for the repayment of money when the loan was used in connection with activities that 
violate U.S. federal law, even if there was no violation of state law. There remains doubt and uncertainty that the Company 
will be able to legally enforce contracts it enters into, if necessary. The Company cannot be assured that it will have a 
remedy for breach of contract, which would have a material adverse effect on the Company. 
 
Public opinion, consumer perception or unfavorable publicity could influence the regulation of the cannabis industry. 
 
Public opinion may also significantly influence the regulation of the cannabis industry in Canada, the United States or 
elsewhere. Public opinion and support for medical and adult-use cannabis has traditionally been inconsistent and has varied 
from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. A negative shift in the public’s perception of cannabis in the United States or any other 
applicable jurisdiction could affect future legislation or regulation of cannabis. Among other things, such a shift could cause 
state jurisdictions to abandon initiatives or proposals to legalize medical and/or adult-use cannabis, thereby limiting the 
number of new jurisdictions into which the Company could expand. Any inability to fully implement the Company’s 
expansion strategy may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations or prospects. 
 
Results of future clinical research could influence the regulation of the cannabis industry and may have an adverse effect on 
the Company’s business. 
 
The Company believes the medical and adult-use cannabis industries are highly dependent upon consumer perception 
regarding the safety, efficacy and quality of cannabis. Consumer perception can be significantly influenced by scientific 
research or findings, regulatory investigations, litigation, media attention and other publicity regarding the consumption of 
cannabis products. There can be no assurance that future scientific research or findings, regulatory investigations, litigation, 
media attention or other publicity will be favorable to the cannabis industry or any particular product, or consistent with 
earlier publicity. Future research reports, findings, regulatory investigations, litigation, media attention or other publicity that 
are perceived as less favorable than, or that question, earlier research reports, findings or other publicity could have a 
material adverse effect on the demand for medical or adult-use cannabis and on the business, results of operations, financial 
condition, cash flows or prospects of the Company. Further, adverse publicity reports or other media attention regarding the 
safety, efficacy and quality of cannabis in general, or associating the consumption of medical and adult-use cannabis with 
illness or other negative effects or events, could have such a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations or 
prospects of the Company. There is no assurance that such adverse publicity reports or other media attention will not arise. 
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United States Border Crossing and Travel Ban  
 
Investors in the Company and the Company’s directors and officers may be subject to travel and entry bans into the U.S. 
Recent media articles have reported that certain Canadian citizens have been rejected for entry into the U.S., due to their 
involvement in the cannabis sector. In at least one widely reported incident, an investor in companies operating in the 
cannabis sector in states where it is legal to do so, received a lifetime ban. 
 
The majority of persons travelling across the Canadian and U.S. border do so without incident, whereas some persons are 
simply barred entry one time. The U.S. Department of State and the Department of Homeland Security has indicated that the 
U.S. has not changed its admission requirements in response to the pending legalization in Canada of recreational cannabis, 
but anecdotal evidence indicates that the U.S. may be increasing its scrutiny of travelers and their cannabis related 
involvement. Admissibility to the U.S. may be denied to any person working or ‘having involvement in’ the cannabis 
industry, including in U.S. states where it is deemed legal, according to United States Customs and Border Protection.  
 
Ability to Access Public and Private Capital 

The Company has historically, and continues to have, access to equity and debt financing from the prospectus exempt 
(private placement) markets in Canada and the United States. While the Company is not able to obtain bank financing in the 
U.S. or financing from other U.S. federally regulated entities, it currently has access to equity financing through the private 
markets in Canada and the U.S. The Company’s executive team and board also have extensive relationships with sources of 
private capital (such as funds and high net worth individuals), that could be investigated at a higher cost of capital.  

If such equity and/or debt financing was no longer available in the public markets in Canada due to changes in applicable 
law, then the Company expects that it would have access to raise equity and/or debt financing privately. Commercial banks, 
private equity firms and venture capital firms have approached the cannabis industry cautiously to date. However, there are 
increasing numbers of high net worth individuals and family offices that have made meaningful investments in companies 
and projects similar to the Company’s projects. Although there has been an increase in the amount of private financing 
available over the last several years, there is neither a broad nor deep pool of institutional capital that is available to cannabis 
license holders and license applicants. There can be no assurance that additional financing, if raised privately, will be 
available to the Company when needed or on terms which are acceptable. The Company’s inability to raise financing to fund 
capital expenditures or acquisitions could limit its growth and may have a material adverse effect upon future profitability. 
See “Risk Factors - The Company may require additional capital to finance its operations in the future, but that capital may 
not be available when it is needed and could be dilutive to existing shareholders”. 

Our business is dependent on laws pertaining to the marijuana industry.  

Continued development of the marijuana industry is dependent upon continued legislative authorization of the use and 
cultivation of marijuana at the state level.  Any number of factors could slow or halt progress in this area.  Further, progress, 
while encouraging, is not assured.  While there may be ample public support for legislative action, numerous factors impact 
the legislative process.  Any one of these factors could slow or halt use of marijuana, which would negatively impact our 
proposed business. 

Currently, there are thirty three states plus the District of Columbia that have laws and/or regulation that recognize in one 
form or another legitimate medical uses for cannabis and consumer use of cannabis in connection with medical treatment. 
There are currently ten states and the District of Columbia that allow recreational use of cannabis. As of September 30, 2018, 
the policy and regulations of the U.S. Federal government and its agencies is that cannabis has no medical benefit and a 
range of activities including cultivation and use of cannabis for personal use is prohibited on the basis of federal law and may 
or may not be permitted on the basis of state law. Active enforcement of the current federal regulatory position on cannabis 
on a regional or national basis may directly and adversely affect the willingness of our customers to invest in or buy 
products. Active enforcement of the current federal regulatory position on cannabis may thus indirectly and adversely affect 
our revenues. 

Further, while we do not harvest, distribute or sell marijuana, by branding products of growers of marijuana, we could be 
deemed to be participating in marijuana cultivation, which remains illegal under federal law, and exposes us to potential 
criminal liability, with the additional risk that our business could be subject to civil forfeiture proceedings. 
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The Company has a limited operating history and operates in a relatively new industry, and the Company may not succeed 

The Company has a limited operating history and may not succeed. The Company is subject to all risks inherent in a 
developing business enterprise. The Company’s likelihood of continued success must be considered in light of the problems, 
expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays frequently encountered in connection with the competitive and regulatory 
environment in which it operates. For example, the adult use marijuana industry is a relatively new industry which, as a 
whole may not succeed, particularly should the Federal government change course and decide to prosecute various parties 
under Federal law. If that happens there may not be an adequate market for the Company’s branded products. As a relatively 
new industry, there are not established players whose business model the Company can follow or build on the success of. 
Similarly, there is no information about comparable companies available for potential investors to review in making a 
decision about whether to invest in the Company.  

Shareholders and investors should further consider, among other factors, the Company’s prospects for success in light of the 
risks and uncertainties encountered by companies that, like the Company, are in their early stages. For example, 
unanticipated expenses and problems or technical difficulties may occur and they may result in material delays in the 
operation of the Company’s business. The Company may not successfully address these risks and uncertainties or 
successfully implement its operating strategies. If the Company fails to do so, it could materially harm the Company’s 
business to the point of having to cease operations and could impair the value of the Company securities to the point 
investors may lose their entire investment. 

The Company’s success is dependent on additional states legalizing marijuana 

Continued development of the recreational marijuana market is dependent upon continued legislative authorization of 
marijuana at the state level and, in certain states, on local governments authorizing a sufficient number of dispensaries. Any 
number of factors could slow or halt the progress. Further, progress, while encouraging, is not assured and the process 
normally encounters set-backs before achieving success. While there may be ample public support for legislative proposal, 
key support must be created in the legislative committee or a bill may never advance to a vote. Numerous factors impact the 
legislative process. Any one of these factors could slow or halt the progress and adoption of marijuana for medical and 
recreational purposes 

The success of the Company’s products and services is uncertain 

The Company has committed, and expects to continue to commit, significant resources and capital to develop and market 
existing products and new products and services. These products and services are relatively untested, and the Company 
cannot assure shareholders and investors that it will achieve market acceptance for these products and services, or other new 
products and services that the Company may offer in the future. Moreover, these and other new products and services may be 
subject to significant competition with offerings by new and existing competitors in the business. In addition, new products 
and services may pose a variety of challenges and require the Company to attract additional qualified employees. The failure 
to successfully develop and market these new products and services could seriously harm the Company’s business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 

The Company’s business is dependent upon continued market acceptance by consumers 

The Company is substantially dependent on continued market acceptance of its brands by dispensaries, consumers and 
industry participants. The Company cannot predict the future changes, growth rate and size of this market. 

Closing of bank accounts could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and/or results of 
operations. 
 
As a result of the regulatory environment in the industry we operate, we have experienced the closing of several of our bank 
accounts since 2014. We have been able to open other bank accounts, however, we may be subject to further closures of 
bank accounts. These factors impact Management and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial 
condition and/or results of operations. 
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RISKS RELATED TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS 

If our license agreement for JuJu Royal is terminated for any reason it may have a material adverse effect on our business 
strategy and our results of operations may suffer 

Effective October 1, 2014, we entered into the license agreement that provides us with the exclusive rights to license Julian 
Marley’s JuJu Royal Ultra Premium Cannabis brand to producers and processors to develop branded strains of cannabis, 
infused and edible cannabis consumables, as well as ancillary products such as clothing, paraphernalia, posters and other 
products.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement we have to make ongoing royalty payments.  There is a minimum royalty 
fee during the year ending December 31, 2019 of $500,000. Failure to adhere to the terms of the license agreement, or an 
early termination or cancellation of this agreement for any reason, would have a material adverse effect on our ability to 
execute our business strategy and our results of operations and financial condition may be materially adversely affected. 
 
The Company currently depends primarily on a limited number of brands for its revenue 

While the Company expects to develop new products and add additional brands through its continued pursuit and expansion 
of its business, the Company currently primarily relies on its marketing and distribution of the LVV family of brands and the 
JuJu Royal Ultra Premium line of products. The Company currently does not have a broad portfolio of other products or 
services that the Company could rely on to support its operations today if the Company were to experience any difficulty 
with the manufacture, marketing, sale, or distribution of the LVV or JuJu Royal products. 

Reliance on License 

LVV’s ability to manufacture and distribute cannabis products in California is dependent on maintaining its licenses in good 
standing with the California State regulator. Failure to comply with the requirements of any of its licenses or any failure to 
maintain any of its licenses would have a material adverse impact on the business, financial condition and operating results 
of the Company. LVV’s licenses in California are currently in good standing and LVV remains fully compliant with the state 
laws and regulations. 

The Company’s ability to manage growth is currently limited 

Anticipated growth in all areas of the Company’s business is expected to continue to place a significant strain on its 
managerial, operational and technical resources. The Company expects operating expenses and staffing levels to increase in 
the future. To manage such growth, the Company must expand its operational and technical capabilities and manage its 
employee base while effectively administering multiple relationships with various third parties. There can be no assurance 
that the Company will be able to manage its expanding operations effectively. Any failure to implement cohesive 
management and operating systems, to add resources on a cost-effective basis or to properly manage the Company’s 
expansion could have a material adverse effect on its business and results of operations. 

The Company relies on key personnel 

The Company’s success will depend in large measure on certain key personnel. The Company does not have key personnel 
insurance, nor does the Company expect to obtain such insurance in the near future. The loss of the services of such key 
personnel may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and 
prospects. The contributions of the existing management team to the immediate and near term operations of the Company are 
likely to be of central importance. In addition, there can be no assurance that The Company will be able to continue to attract 
and retain all personnel necessary for the development and operation of its business. Investors must rely upon the ability, 
expertise, judgment, discretion, integrity and good faith of the management of the Company. 

The Company has a history of operating losses 

The Company was formed in 2014 and has recorded fairly modest revenues to date. Since incorporation, the Company has 
accumulated net losses and expects such losses to continue through the initial stages of its operations. Management expects 
to continue to incur operating losses unless and until such time as product sales generate sufficient revenues to fund 
continuing operations. The Company has neither a history of earnings nor has it paid any dividends and it is unlikely to pay 
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dividends or enjoy earnings in the immediate or foreseeable future. There is no assurance that the Company will produce a 
profit after the successful acquisition of the Company. 

The Company currently has a limited marketing capacity 

To be successful, the Company’s business must be successfully marketed. The market for the Company’s products and 
services has and is expected to grow significantly and may require substantial sales and marketing capability. At the present 
time, the Company has independent parties to market its products and services. There can be no assurance that the Company 
can continue to market, or can enter into satisfactory arrangements with third parties to continue to market its products and 
services in a manner that would assure its growth and acceptance in the market place. 

The Company’s Intellectual Property requires protection 

The Company’s success will depend to a significant degree upon its ability to develop, maintain and protect its brands, as 
well as the proprietary products it develops. The Company has not filed and does not intend to file patent applications in the 
United States as part of its strategy to protect its Intellectual Property. Therefore, third parties may be able to replicate the 
Company’s products and compete against it.   

The Company may have to engage in litigation to protect the Company’s Brands 

The Company’s future success and competitive position depends in part upon its ability to maintain its brands and related 
trademarks. In addition, as the exclusive holder of the rights to JuJu Royal Ultra Premium brand, pursuant to the license 
agreement, the Company is required to maintain all registrations and filing related to the intellectual property and take such 
action as is necessary to preserve, protect and advance the status of the brand, including taking such action as may be 
necessary to take enforcement against infringement or imitation of the brand.  Enforcement of the various trademarks in 
foreign jurisdictions will depend on the legal procedures in those jurisdictions. The Company’s involvement in intellectual 
property litigation could have a material adverse effect on its ability to distribute any products that are the subject of such 
litigation. In addition, the Company’s involvement in intellectual property litigation could result in significant expense, 
which could materially adversely affect the use responsibilities, whether or not such litigation is resolved in the Company’s 
favour. 

The Company may require additional capital to finance its operations in the future, but that capital may not be available 
when it is needed and could be dilutive to existing shareholders 

The Company may require additional capital for future operations and to fund investments. The Company plans to finance 
anticipated ongoing expenses and capital requirements with funds generated from the following sources: cash provided by 
operating activities; available cash and cash investments; and capital raised through debt and equity offerings. 

Current conditions in the capital markets are such that traditional sources of capital may not be available to the Company 
when needed or may be available only on unfavorable terms. The Company’s ability to raise additional capital, if needed, 
will depend on conditions in the capital markets, economic conditions and a number of other factors, many of which are 
outside its control, and on its financial performance. Accordingly, the Company cannot assure Shareholders that it will be 
able to successfully raise additional capital at all or on terms that are acceptable to it. If the Company cannot raise additional 
capital when needed, it may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s liquidity, financial condition, results of 
operations and prospects. Further, if the Company raises capital by issuing equity, the holdings of its existing shareholders 
will be diluted. 

If the Company raises capital by issuing debt securities, such debt securities would rank senior to its common shares upon its 
bankruptcy or liquidation. In addition, the Company may raise capital by issuing equity securities that may be senior to its 
common shares for the purposes of dividend and liquidating distributions, which may adversely affect the market price of its 
common shares. Finally, upon bankruptcy or liquidation, holders of its debt securities and preferred shares and lenders with 
respect to other borrowings will receive a distribution of the Company’s available assets prior to the common shareholders. 
Additional equity offerings may dilute the holdings of existing shareholders or reduce the market price of the Company’s 
common shares, or both. 
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The Company does not expect to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future 

The Company intends to retain its future earnings, if any, in order to reinvest in the development and growth of its business 
and, therefore, does not intend to pay dividends on its common shares for the foreseeable future. Any future determination to 
pay dividends will be at the discretion of its board of directors and will depend on its financial condition, results of 
operations, capital requirements, and such other factors as its board of directors deems relevant. Accordingly, shareholders 
may need to sell their shares of the Company’s common shares to realize a return on their investment, and shareholders may 
not be able to sell their shares at or above the price they paid for them. 

There is a limited market for the Company’s securities 

There can be no assurance that an active and liquid market for the Company’s securities will develop and an investor may 
find it difficult to resell any securities of the Company. 

We have limited insurance. 
 
We currently have limited directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and no limited commercial liability insurance policies. 
Any significant claims would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.   
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

Additional information relating to the Company including the unaudited financial statements for the years ended December 
31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, Annual Listing Statement for the year ended December 31, 2018, and press releases issued 
by the Company, are available under the Company’s profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. 




